I< g AR ERZEREARLZ2TF

KINGBOARD LAMINATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Stock Code R&1n 5% 1888

Annual Report &3k

2010



Contents B %

Corporate Information

Financial Highlights

Chairman’s Statement

Directors’ and Senior
Management’s Biographies

Directors’ Report

Corporate Governance Report

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Income Statement

Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position

Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Financial Summary

NARVEHR

MBHE

TREE

EXkEMER
ABZERE

BERE)

op

wE

B EEN RS

i
o>

VN

Wk

CEAEL G

S

I

AR

FAEDREPER

HARTRER

fRa MR

FSHE

11

16

31

47

49

50

51

53

54

56

146

Annual Report 2010 Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited

R 2RRERERERAT

01



Corporate Information
NAEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa (Chairman)

Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung (Managing Director)
Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping

Mr. Lam Ka Po

Mr. Cheung Ka Ho

Ms. Chan Sau Chi

Mr. Liu Min

Mr. Zhou Pei Feng

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Lo Ka Leong

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chan Charnwut Bernard

Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr. Leung Tai Chiu

Mr. Mok Yiu Keung, Peter

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Tsoi Kin Lung

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of America, N.A.

Bank of Communications Co. Ltd.
China Construction Bank Corporation
Citibank, N.A.

DBS Bank Ltd., Hong Kong Branch

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
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Hong Kong
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Financial Highlights
B REE

Year ended

31 December 2010
BE-ZE—ZF
TZA=+—HLEE
HK$ MillionE &3& 7t

Year ended

31 December 2009
HE-TTAF

T A=F+—HIEFE
HK$ Million & & 7T

Revenue B 13,055.2 9,071.0
EBITDA* RIMBRFIS. - BB ~ 47
BEREBHEARR 3,304.5 2,776.5
Profit before tax* BR %4 AT 2 R 2,480.1 1,939.1
Net profit attributable to AATEFE AELGF
owners of the Company
— Underlying net profit* — EARGER* 2,124.0 1,793.2
- Reported net profit — AR 4 A 2,280.4 1,648.0
Basic earnings per share ERELER
- Based on underlying net profit* — ARG & HK70.8 centsi& 1l HK59.8 centsisfIL
- Based on reported net profit — ABRmEALFETE HK76.0 centsi& 1L HK54.9 centsi# {1l
Full-year dividend per share BREERE HK34.0 centsi&{l HK28.0 centsi& 1l
— Interim dividend per share — FRE R HARE B HK16.0 centsi&{l HK10.0 centsi 1l
— Proposed final dividend per share  — i3 G AR R EIA% 2, HK18.0 centsj&{l HK18.0 centsi& 1l
Dividend payout ratio IRELEZR 45% 51%
Net asset value per share EREESE HK$3.29& T HKS$2.787 7T
Net gearing FEELE 14% 10%
Revenue Net profit attributable to owners of the
= Company
AT RE ARBGFF
HKS$ Million HKS$ Million
BEBT BRET
13,500 2,400
12,000 2,100
10,500 1,800
9,000 8,472
1,500
(75:::: 6,131 1,200 1037 1078 v
4,500 o 900
3,000 2978 600
1,500 300
0 0
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
* Excluding: TEIE
2010: ?na”ilriwor(])n disposal of available-for-sale investments of HK$156.4 —T-TF  HETHBEREZ KRG —BRAT AEN 85T

TETAF  RERE-T B _TEEIRAHBERAZRERR
—RATABEO+&EET

2009: the discount on acquisition of HK$11.2 million and impairment
loss on available-for-sale investments of HK$156.4 million
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Chairman’s Statement
FERSE

BUSINESS REVIEW

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am delighted to report to
our shareholders that Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) delivered
record-breaking revenue and earnings for the financial year
ended 31 December 2010. Revenue of the Group grew 44% to
HK$13,055.2 million, while net profit (excluding non-recurring
item) increased 18% to HK$2,124.0 million. Our vertically
integrated business model and experienced management team
have placed the Group in an advantageous position to ride
through any challenges and capture growth opportunities in the
market place. Once again the Group delivered excellent returns
to our shareholders. The Board proposes a final dividend of HK18
cents per share subject to shareholders’ approval. Together with
the interim dividend of HK16 cents per share paid in September
2010, this will constitute a total dividend of HK34 cents per share
for the full year, representing a payout ratio of 45%.

Backed by the global economic recovery, demand growth for
electronic products was robust which translated into strong
rebound in exports sales for the Group in the current year.
Bolstered by favourable policies implemented by the Chinese
government to boost domestic consumption, domestic demand
for consumer products shown significant growth. The Group
continued to gain growth momentum in China as a result of our
strategic focus on expanding the domestic market, which has
enormous growth potential. During the year under review, the
Group enjoyed remarkable business growth in China’s domestic
market. Sales denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) soared by
around 48% to account for 42% of total revenue.

Revenue Breakdown by Product & £ %85

E 4R

AANZBRREZEES  MARSABELM - BER
BRERERAR( 2R REMBAR([EE])
R-E—ZTF+-F=+—H It BFEERNESE
Bl m 2 SEBEMAT - £EEEEENM4%E
—BHZTERETRE-T&E5 EXAE@FN(CTE
HIEREMER )RS E_+—B_FTHAES
B REEEFEBRAKERANBRARFE
2 NEEHLEEEEERNEBEBES  BE
[EHMIS ENSES RIS EEB—XARE
BRIBREMONg EECERRERERETR
18781l - IR EEZBFRRZFBE - ERARN
—T-TFENAREERI6GEINZFEHRE - &
FIREBEETRIAEN - IRELLREASY ©

REBEE  ETEMMBSHREHE - SEHO
HEIRR - ZBN P BT F B i & RS
K KDRIMTEEBEMETEMNALER &
B ERETISNIERE N - BRERAZRFEAT
BALHEDS  MBFEATEARLTISHER
BRA - AREEERBLEFRBARE LTT48% -
EEEREER242% °

16% 5%

22% 27%

57%

13% 8%

52%

FY2010 FY2009
—E-EFHKTFE ZEENTFHHFE
[ Glass Epoxy Laminates REKIHSERIER
Paper Laminates KB A E R

[ Upstream Materials* izl

Hl Others” HAtbH
* Upstream Materials including copper foil, epoxy resin, glass fabric and EHYEBERE  REEE  BREETREAR

bleached kraft paper HU

# Others comprises driling services and PVB # Hith o iR LIRS N B 2 IR B4R T B
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Chairman’s Statement EEHE

PERFORMANCE

Driven by favourable market conditions for electronic products
in 2010, robust demand for tablet PCs, smartphones and high-
end communication devices translated into strong demand
for laminate products, laminate shipment volume experienced
significant growth. On the back of higher copper prices in
the current year, average selling price (“ASP”) of laminates
experienced an uptrend. Meanwhile, supply of glass yarn and
glass fabric remained tight, pushing the ASP of glass epoxy
laminates even higher. Hence, the Group upgraded certain paper
laminates production lines to composite epoxy material (“CEM”)
laminates and glass epoxy laminates capacities in order to
improve our product mix in the current year. Phase Il production
capacity of the laminate plant in Jiangyin, Jiangsu province was
expanded successfully during the year under review, the monthly
production capacities of both CEM laminates and glass epoxy
laminates increased progressively in line with market demand.
In addition, 400,000 sheets per month of paper laminates
production capacity was added in Fogang plant, Guangdong
province. Total laminates production capacity for the Group
reached more than 9.8 million square metres per month at the
end of 2010.

Consolidated revenue of the Group grew 44% to HK$13,055.2
million, while earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortisation (“EBITDA”) (excluding non-recurring item) surged
by 19% to HK$3,304.5 million. Volume sales increased around
13% against the previous year with average monthly shipment
of 8.6 million square metres. However, due to continuous raw
materials costs increase in the second half of 2010 and lower
capacity utilisation initially for newly added capacities in Jiangyin
and Fogang plants together with pre-operating expenses written
off for both plants, gross profit margin declined to 24% from 28%
in 2009.

As shipment volume increased, distribution costs increased 32%
against last year. Administrative costs rose 10% while finance
costs increased by 18%. Effective tax rate increased to 10% as
PRC tax holiday for certain subsidiaries of the Group expired in
the current year.
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Chairman’s Statement EEHRE

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

QOur consolidated financial and liquidity position remained robust
with strong operating cash inflow. As at 31 December 2010, net
current assets and current ratio of the Group were approximately
HK$5,243.4 million (31 December 2009 — HK$5,047.6 million)
and 2.24 (31 December 2009 — 3.03) respectively.

The net working capital cycle shortened to 140 days as at 31
December 2010 from 155 days as at 31 December 2009 on the
following key metrics:

- Inventories, in terms of stock turnover days, decreased to
84 days as the Group consumed lower costs inventories
strategically stocked up in 2009 with higher shipment
volume in the current year (31 December 2009 — 102
days).

- Trade receivables including amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries, in terms of debtors turnover days, were 93
days, being similar to last year (31 December 2009 — 95
days).

- Trade and bills payables including amounts due to
fellow subsidiaries, in terms of creditors turnover days,
decreased to 37 days (31 December 2009 — 42 days).

The Group’s net gearing ratio (ratio of interest bearing borrowings
net of cash and cash equivalents to total equity) was 14%
(31 December 2009 — 10%). In 2010, the Group invested
HK$730.5 million in new production capacities. The proportion
of bank borrowings between short term and long term stood
at 61%:39% (31 December 2009: 34%:66%). Less than 2% of
the bank borrowings was denominated in RMB and the rest in
Hong Kong or US dollars. As at 31 December 2010, the Group
has successfully arranged refinancing for the syndicated loan,
which will fall due within 2011, with outstanding amount around
HK$1,623.1 million.

RBE S RIBARR
SENGEVBRABDESRMABLERITR
B YTHESEINKERERA - R_F
—EEST AT -HZRPEEZFELDLAR
At BT+ 8ET(—ETNE+_A
=t—B:A+RETLBENTEEL) BRI
KA/ 24(ZTFNAF+-_A=1T—H :3803) °

NE+=B=+—Re
—EE+-A=+—Ae

FREEEEA-ZEE
—BRtRHHEHEEZ"F

—BHN+H @omT

- BRFEARMNES LA - BT ZEZNF
ﬁﬁﬁﬂléti*bquﬁﬁiﬁzZKET FERERE
i)\+@5(—¥¥ﬂ£ﬁ+—ﬂi+_

E_H) o

- BIRYGIAETREKRERRKEAR
Zf’f%ﬂgﬂk?ﬂlﬁ)%ﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂL:H -
EFEN(CTTAFET_A=1+—8:
A+HHE) -

- BIRNEALENRER(EPRIERER

ZMB AR ESEMNER) AEHEEE

=+ +tR(ZEEAF+-_A=+—8:

m+=—8) -
SEZFEERE(HRRERRESEEYMEZ
M EEERERBELER)AE14%(ZTETNEF
TZA=+—H :10%) - EER=_Z—ZF K
ETHE=ZFTERTEBLAETNEERM °
RHBRABEENLTI A61%  390%(ZFTT 1
F+ZA=1+—H :34% : 66%)  RITEE
L% BARKEEN - B AETHETE
FoBE-_ZT-TE+_A=1—8 —EBHEDH
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Chairman’s Statement EEHE

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES (continued)
The Group continued to adopt a prudent financial management
policy including the use of interest rate swap contracts to
minimise its exposure to fluctuation in interest rates. As at the
end of 2010, the notional outstanding amount for interest rate
swap agreements stood approximately at HK$900 million with a
weighted average duration of 0.4 year and interest rate of 2.7%.
The Group also entered into commodity forward contracts so as
to manage the Group’s exposure to fluctuation in commodities
prices. The fair value of these contracts amounted to HK$33.5
million as at 31 December 2010. Other than derivative financial
instruments in connection with our daily operations as mentioned
above, the Group had not entered into any other material
derivative financial instruments throughout the year of 2010.
There was no material foreign exchange exposure to the Group
during the year under review. The Group’s revenue, mostly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, RMB and US dollars,
was fairly matched with the currency requirement of operating
expenses.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had a workforce of
approximately 8,800 (31 December 2009: 8,800). Group
headcount was similar to last year despite shipment volume
increase against last year as a result of more efficient human
resources management initiatives implemented by the Group.
In addition to offering competitive salary packages, the Group
grants discretionary bonuses to eligible employees based on its
overall financial achievement and their individual performance.
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Chairman’s Statement EEHRE

PROSPECTS

With global economic recovery momentum remains on track,
export demand for electronic products is expected to be
excellent. Hence, the Group is confident of the positive business
outlook for the laminate business. On the back of China’s
buoyant economy, rising disposable income for the consumers in
China is likely to further drive up the penetration rate of household
appliances and demand growth for electronic consumer
products, which in turn should be a positive driver for laminate
demand. With increasing popularity of high technology products
including smartphones, mobile hand-held devices and tablet
PCs, the Group has focused on expanding our capabilities in the
production of thin and high performance laminates. The Group
has successfully penetrated the thin laminates market in eastern
China. We are moving ahead to break into the southern China
market with a plan to build additional thin and high performance
laminates capacity in our Jiangmen laminate plant in Guangdong
province in order to meet the strong demand from our multilayer
and high density interconnects (“HDI”) PCB customers.

With tight market supply, raw materials costs for laminates
remained high in the first two months of 2011. As a result, ASP
of laminates products continued to show an uptrend. Facing
the headwinds in a dynamic market environment, the Group
will focus on effective cost control and efficiency improvement
initiatives as well as ongoing investment to upgrade our product
mix to pave a concrete foundation for future revenue growth and
reinforce our competitive edge in the laminate market. To further
strengthen the Group’s vertically integrated business model,
preparation is currently underway to build a new glass fabric
plant and a glass yarn plant in Changzhou, Jiangsu province
over the next two years to secure the supply of key upstream
materials for the laminates division in eastern China. The Group
has made good progress in discussions with local authorities in
Shenzhen to explore the feasibility of redeveloping our existing
plant in Lunghua, Shenzhen.
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders, customers,
banks, the management and employees for their unreserved
support to the Group in the past financial year.

Cheung Kwok Wa
Chairman
Hong Kong, 7 March 2011
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

EENESREBABZER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Wa, aged 47, is an executive Director and
the Chairman of the Company. He is a brother of Mr. Cheung
Kwok Keung and Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping, both being executive
Directors and an uncle of Mr. Cheung Ka Ho, an executive
Director. Mr. Cheung joined Kingboard Chemical Holdings
Limited (“KCHL”) in 1988 and has over 22 years’ experience
in the marketing of a wide range of industrial products. He is
responsible for the overall strategic planning of the Group and
sets the general direction and goals for the Group. Mr. Cheung
was appointed as an executive Director in July 2006.

Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Keung, aged 58, is an executive Director
and the Managing Director of the Company. He is a brother
of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa and Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping, both
being executive Directors, and an uncle of Mr. Cheung Ka Ho,
an executive Director. Mr. Cheung joined KCHL in 1991 and
has over 19 years’ experience in the laminate industry. He is
responsible for the overall implementation of the strategic plans
and goals of the Group. Mr. Cheung was appointed as an
executive Director in July 2006.

Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Ping, aged 50, is an executive Director. He is
a brother of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa and Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung,
both being executive Directors, and an uncle of Mr. Cheung Ka
Ho, an executive Director. Mr. Cheung joined KCHL in 1988
and has over 22 years’ experience in marketing. He is mainly
responsible for the Group’s marketing operations and is also
the general manager of the paper laminate factories in Fogang
and Shaoguan, the PRC. Mr. Cheung is also an executive
director of Kingboard Copper Foil Holdings Limited (“KBCF”),
a 64.57%-owned subsidiary of the Company as at the end of
reporting period and whose shares are listed on the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX”). Mr. Cheung was
appointed as an executive Director in May 2006.

Mr. LAM Ka Po, aged 54, is an executive Director. Mr. Lam is a
co-founder of KCHL and has over 22 years’ experience in the
sales and distribution of laminates. Mr. Lam is also an executive
director of KBCF. He was appointed as an executive Director in
November 2006.

HITES
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies EE & 5 EEAEZ

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. CHEUNG Ka Ho, aged 27, is an executive Director. Mr.
Cheung is the nephew of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa, Mr. Cheung
Kwok Keung and Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping, all being executive
Directors. Mr. Cheung joined KCHL in 2004 and is involved in the
laminate marketing operations for the southern region of China.
He was appointed as an executive Director in July 2006.

Ms. CHAN Sau Chi, aged 36, is an executive Director. Ms. Chan
holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Statistics from Carleton University,
Canada. Prior to joining KCHL in 1999, she was an executive in
a financial public relations firm. Ms. Chan is responsible for the
Group’s purchase of laminate-related raw materials. She was
appointed as an executive Director in May 2006.

Mr. LIU Min, aged 42, is an executive Director. He joined KCHL in
1998. Mr. Liu graduated from Harbin University with a Bachelor’s
Degree in Chemical Engineering. Prior to joining KCHL, he had
over 7 years’ experience in the copper foil industry. He was
appointed as an executive Director in November 2006.

Mr. ZHOU Pei Feng, aged 42, is an executive Director. He joined
KCHL in 1999 and is the general manager of four glass epoxy
laminate facilities in Shenzhen, Fogang, Jiangmen and Jiangyin,
the PRC. Mr. Zhou holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Mechanical
Engineering from the Chongqging University and a Master’s
Degree in Material Processing Engineering from Jilin Industrial
University (now known as Jilin University). He was appointed as
an executive Director in November 2006.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. LO Ka Leong, aged 37, is a non-executive Director. Mr. Lo
is also a member of the audit committee of the Company. He
holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Professional Accountancy from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong and is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lo
joined KCHL in May 1999 and is in charge of KCHL's company
secretarial work. Prior to joining KCHL, he was an accountant at
an international accounting firm. Mr. Lo was appointed as a non-
executive Director in July 2006.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. CHAN Charnwut Bernard, aged 46, joined as an independent
non-executive Director in November 2006. Mr. Chan is also the
chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company, and a
member of the audit committee and the nomination committee
of the Company. Mr. Chan is a Deputy to the National People’s
Congress of the People’s Republic of China. Mr. Chan is a
graduate of Pomona College in California, the United States.
He holds the positions of President and executive director of
Asia Financial Holdings Limited, a company listed on the main
board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), and Asia Insurance Company Limited. Mr. Chan also
serves as the advisor of Bangkok Bank Public Company Ltd.,
Hong Kong Branch, the chairman of the Hong Kong-Thailand
Business Council and the Vice Chairman of The Hong Kong
Council of Social Service. Mr. Chan also serves as director on
the boards of several companies listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange, namely City e-Solutions Limited (non-executive),
New Heritage Holdings Limited (non-executive), Chen Hsong
Holdings Limited (independent non-executive), China Resources
Enterprise, Limited (independent non-executive) and Yau Lee
Holdings Limited (independent non-executive).

Mr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael, aged 59, joined as an
independent non-executive Director in November 2006. Mr.
Chan is also the chairman of the nomination committee of
the Company, and a member of the audit committee and
remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Chan is the
chairman and an executive director of Cafe de Coral Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Chan is a non-executive director of Tao Heung
Holdings Limited since 2007, as well as an independent non-
executive director of Starlite Holdings Limited since 1993, Pacific
Textiles Holdings Limited since 2007, and Tse Sui Luen Jewellery
(International) Limited since 2010, all of which are listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan formerly was a
professional city planner with various government bodies in Hong
Kong and Canada. He obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Arts
and a Master’s degree in City Planning from the University of
Manitoba, Canada, an Honorary Doctorate Degree in Business
Administration, and is bestowed as Honorary Fellow from
Lingnan University. Mr. Chan acts as the Honourary Chairman of
the Hong Kong Institute of Marketing and serves on the executive
committee of the Hong Kong Retail Management Association,
and the general committee of the Employers’ Federation of Hong
Kong. He is also an appointed member of the Quality Tourism
Services Association and a board member of the Hong Kong
Tourism Board.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. LEUNG Tai Chiu, aged 64, joined as an independent
non-executive Director in November 2006. Mr. Leung is also the
chairman of the audit committee of the Company, and a member
of the remuneration committee and nomination committee of the
Company. Mr. Leung graduated from the Hong Kong University in
1969. He is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. He has broad experience in accounting
and auditing matters, having worked in the auditing profession
for over 30 years, 20 years of which he served as a partner. Mr.
Leung retired from PricewaterhouseCoopers in 2005. Mr. Leung
was the President of Lions Club of Victoria in 1986 and 1998 and
a director of Yan Oi Tong from 1995 to 1997. He is a member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and is an independent non-
executive director of Eva Precision Industrial Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. MOK Yiu Keung, Peter, aged 59, joined as an independent
non-executive Director in November 2006. Mr. Mok is also a
member of the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Mok is the chairman
of Biu Chun Watch Hands & Parts Manufacturers Limited and has
over 30 years of experience in the manufacturing industry. Mr.
Mok pursued a Master’s degree at Yanshan University in 2003.
He served as the Vice Chairman of the Watch Parts & Equipment
Exhibition in 1997 and the Chairman in 1998 and 1999. He
was the Vice President and later the Executive Vice President
of the Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries
from 1999 to 2001 and from 2001 to 2003, respectively. Mr.
Mok joined the Hong Kong St. John Ambulance in 1998 as the
Command President of Dental Command. Mr. Mok is currently
the vice chairman of the China Horologe Association, the
Honorary vice President of Shenzhen Watch & Clock Association
and the President of the Hong Kong Rangers Football Club.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CHANG Guo Qiang, age 43, joined KCHL in 2002 and is
the general manager of the glass fabric factories in Shenzhen
and Lianzhou, the PRC. Mr. Chang graduated from Hunan
Chang Sha University with a Bachelor’s Degree in Textiles. Prior
to joining KCHL, he had over 14 years’ experience in the glass
fabric industry.

Mr. HU Guo Liang, age 54, joined KCHL in 2000 and is the
general manager of the glass yarn factory in Panyu Nansha,
the PRC. Mr. Hu graduated from the East China University of
Science and Technology with a Bachelor’s Degree in Material
Science Engineering. Prior to joining KCHL, he had over 19
years’ experience in the glass yarn industry.

Mr. TSOI Kin Lung, aged 35, joined KCHL in November 2003.
Prior to that, he was an accountant at an international accounting
firm. Mr. Tsoi is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He holds a Bachelor’'s Degree
in Business Administration from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong. He is in charge of the company secretarial work and
financial management of the Group.
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Directors’ Report
EEEHRE

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) are pleased to present
their report and the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 49.

An interim dividend of HK16 cents per share was paid to the
shareholders of the Company during the year. The Directors
now recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK18 cents
per share to the shareholders on the register of members of the
Company on 3 May 2011, and the retention of the remaining
profit in the Company.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the year in the issued share
capital of the Company are set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

During the year, there was no purchase, sale or redemption by
the Company or any of its subsidiaries of the Company’s listed
securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) .
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RESERVES

Details of the movements during the year in the reserves of the
Group are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 53.

In addition to the retained profits of the Company, the share
premium and special reserve of the Company are also available
for distribution to shareholders provided that the Company will
be able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business immediately following the date on which any such
distribution is proposed to be paid.

At 31 December 2010, the sum of the retained profits, the share
premium and the special reserve of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$6,611,449,000.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties were revalued as at
31 December 2010, resulting in an increase in fair value of
approximately HK$7,550,000 which has been credited directly to
the consolidated income statement.

PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Expenditure of approximately HK$730,480,000 was incurred
during the year primarily to expand the production capacity of the
Group. Details of all the changes during the year are set out in
note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2010 are set out in note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
totalling approximately HK$6,751,000.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE EEREECRESH

CONTRACTS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report FRREZEAREAMIIZEEMNT ¢
were:

Executive Directors: PITES

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa (Chairman) RIS (EE)

Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung (Managing Director) SR B8 5t A (EFARATHE)
Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping ok B

Mr. Lam Ka Po WF% itast

Mr. Cheung Ka Ho RR&EE

Ms. Chan Sau Chi Iﬁ%%d\ﬁﬂ

Mr. Liu Min st

Mr. Zhou Pei Feng gL
Non-executive Director: FHITES :

Mr. Lo Ka Leong ERTITE
Independent non-executive Directors: BYHITES :

Mr. Chan Charnwut Bernard BRES B

Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael BRAA S S A

Mr. Leung Tai Chiu REEBEE

Mr. Mok Yiu Keung, Peter BRI E

It was originally proposed that, at the forthcoming annual general  [R4&EZHENAQREREREEF RS L HiiTES
meeting of the Company, each of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa and Mr.  REZEHX A RMRB LS FRTESERS
Lam Ka Po, being executive Directors, Mr. Lo Ka Leong being a 4 » ARIE T IFITE SRS B4 R 2B LEA
non-executive Director and each of Mr. Chan Charnwut Bernard & B AR FIEREREBEASRHERE - 1
and Mr. Leung Tai Chiu, being independent non-executive  RIEAQFMAESIEMEAIFI10ERNEBREEE
Directors, will retire from directorship by rotation and will be &% -

eligible for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting

of the Company in accordance with Article 130 of the Company’s

Articles of Association.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS (continued)

The Board has been informed by Mr. Chan Charnwut Bernard
that he will not offer himself for re-election as a Director at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company as he
intends to retire immediately after the meeting. Mr. Chan would
like to devote more time to his personal commitments. Mr. Chan
has confirmed that he has no disagreement with the Board and
that there is no matter relating to his retirement that needs to be
brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company.
The Board would like to extend its gratitude to Mr. Chan for
his valuable contribution to the Company in the past years.
Therefore, Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa, Mr. Lam Ka Po, Mr. Lo Ka
Leong and Mr. Leung Tai Chiu will offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Each of the executive Directors had entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from 5 November 2006. Each service contract will
continue thereafter until terminated by not less than one month’s
notice in writing served by either party on the other.

The non-executive Director and each of the independent
non-executive Directors had been appointed for an initial term
of two years commencing in November 2006. In addition, the
appointment of each of the non-executive Director will continue
after initial term unless terminated by three months’ notice in
writing served by either party on the other. The appointment
of the independent non-executive Directors will continue after
the initial term unless otherwise agreed between the parties. All
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with
the Company’s Articles of Association and the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

Biographical details of the above Directors are set out in
the section headed “Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographies” on pages 11 to 15.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company has a service contract which is
not terminable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

ESRESZRBESNE)

EEREREBALEEAN  ARENARRERER
RBFRGRIEVRK - BT ERAR R REEK
RBFAEEEETESE -REEFERAEZR
BRTLAEE L - RELEARNBREZTSWESD
I TMERBRRECEHEENEARRAIIIR - &
FERNEREEBESZFREADEUFHNER
BRARREE - El - REFELELE  MRELLE
BE=RERRBBELEBR AR ERERRBSF
REERESBIE -

BLRTEECRARBFLRBEELK - 8B
ZTRF+—ADBRE  NTEHR=F - 8HR
BRANERBEEESN  BEEEP—TRAS 7
FEHADR—EAEERAEZI AR -

FATEERERBUIIMTERT TR -FT
NET— ARG VX REIME - 1o - BIERTT
EFE2 IR BROTFRRES  BRIFE—TRAR—
FERE=(EAEEBMNE LTS - BUFRNTES
ZERBRYIPFRREE  EHhXBHEERIR
Hh o 2RBRARBAND A ABEIZMAREZ
g LR RN LR )& ERE -

tREEZ BEFBEHINENEISAEERG
MEBANBZEE]—F -

BEARBERERRBFASEREEZEEME
EAREEIAEATAIR - FRABABECEER
ERINTRLEZRBEH -

Annual Report 2010 Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited 1 9

T-TFFR BERERERERDA



\/

n )

Directors’ Report EE 2%

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2010, the interests of the Directors and their
associates in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”)), as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as
follows:

EEoROER
RZE—TF+-A=+—H EIRESIHE
ARARD R R E A E (F & R EH RIS G
(TBH R EEEG]]) BXVER) 2 Bty - HERERR A
EHF - WARRAIREES RS EHI 535215
GFE BTG RS - REEMETAE
HETEAFLFWZESTRD IS A A T R
ZHEIAT

Long position E&E
(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company  (a) AR FREEO10E T ZER (AR
(“Shares”) %))
Approximate
percentage of
the issued
share capital
Number of of the Company
issued Shares N |
Name of Director Capacity held BEITRA
EEpnA HEmtE e #TROHE ZBABED
Mr. Cheung Ka Ho Beneficial owner 89,000 0.003
REZFLE BEHEEAA
Ms. Chan Sau Chi Beneficial owner 60,000 0.002
PBRF £/ A BEamEEA
Mr. Lo Ka Leong Beneficial owner 50,000 0.002
BRITE BEHEEAA
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DIR

ECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (continued)

Long position (continued)

(b)

(©

Non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each of Kingboard
Laminates Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company

BEEoRIOES®)

RE®E)

®) ARG EHEZ BN ESEERE
R A G ETE 15T 2 A IR E B AL R 17

Number of non-voting
deferred shares held

Name of Director Capacity sk EREIRIE
EEpnA ERtE RGEE
(Note)
(FftsE)
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa Beneficial owner 1,058,000
SREIZE S BEEAA
Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung Beneficial owner 529,000
o B 58 5t 4 BEREAA
Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping Beneficial owner 952,200
KRBTSR BHEEAA
Mr. Lam Ka Po Beneficial owner 581,900
MERE XL BEREAA
Note: None of the non-voting deferred shares of Kingboard Laminates FtEE - NREFHESFERSEEREE AT ZEEE
Limited are held by the Group. Such deferred shares carry no ORI o :Z T IRITAD I HFT #5 a] U B
rights to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general SEREERER AT REAS RS S FERR
meeting of Kingboard Laminates Limited and have practically no FAERANE HREIEMN - TRRA WIS
rights to dividends or to participate in any distribution on winding HNEREES R DR BEER -
up.
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of Kingboard Chemical  (c) AR GIRAIERR 2N Al 5L TEE ([ #F

Holdings Limited ("KCHL”), the ultimate holding company

of the Company

16 ) EREEO 108 T.2 EER

Approximate
percentage of

the issued

Number of share capital

issued ordinary of KCHL

shares held HEELET

Name of Director Capacity Fridc &1 BETRA

EEpnA REmtE ZRRROEE ZBHBED

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa Beneficial owner 1,622,000 0.191
SREIZE S A BEREAA

Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung Beneficial owner 1,122,352 0.132
SRER S BE=mAA

Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping Beneficial owner 2,393,653 0.282
SREIF ST A BEREAA

Mr. Lam Ka Po Beneficial owner 1,965,234 0.231
MRERE BE=mEAA

Mr. Cheung Ka Ho Beneficial owner 50,000 0.006
REZITE BEREAA

Ms. Chan Sau Chi (Note) Beneficial owner 1,820,000 0.214
PRS2/ A (T EE) BE=EAA

Note: 1,810,000 shares were held by her spouse. fE : 1,810,000 %17 R BB A -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (continued) EEoROER
Long position (continued) EE
(d) Share options of KCHL (@) EEIE T Z BB
Interest in underlying
shares of KCHL
pursuant to share options
Name of Director Capacity BEABREET
EEpA REmMtE #ZE{ TAHRER G ER
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa Beneficial owner 623,600
SREIZE S A BEREAA
Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung Beneficial owner 521,600
o B 58 5T 4 BEREAA
Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping Beneficial owner 678,600
SREIFSEAE BEREAA
Mr. Lam Ka Po Beneficial owner 214,600
MREFRE BEREAA
(e Warrants of KCHL e FEEE L2 SRR
Interest in underlying
shares of KCHL
pursuant to warrants
Name of Director Capacity RREFIET
EEpnA EmtE #ZE{ TAHRR G ERE
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa Beneficial owner 124,700
SREIZESL 4 BE=BA
Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung Beneficial owner 215,985
SREIR S BE=EBA
Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping Beneficial owner 246,865
SREIF A BE=BA
Mr. Lam Ka Po Beneficial owner 159,973
MRE % BEmEEA
Mr. Cheung Ka Ho Beneficial owner 5,000
RRFITE BEmEEA
Ms. Chan Sau Chi (Note) Beneficial owner 182,000
BRF5 £/ MA (T EE) BamEEA

Note: 181,000 warrants were held by her spouse.

The interests are by virtue of warrants which entitled
the warrant holders to subscribe for KCHL shares at an
exercise price of HK$40.00 per share during the period
from 5 May 2010 and up to 31 October 2012 (both days

inclusive).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (continued)
Long position (continued)

®

Ordinary shares (“EEIC Shares”) in Elec & Eltek
International Company Limited (“EEIC”), a fellow
subsidiary of the Company

EEoROERE)

RE#)

® KRG EHTE R AR L EEBERL
AI([EEIC)).Z E#fK ([EEICHR 7 ])

Approximate
percentage of
Number of the issued share

issued EEIC capital of EEIC
Shares held {5EEIC
Name of Director Capacity e 1T ERITRA
EEpE EEME EEICRKR 2 & B ZERBESI
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa Beneficial owner 694,600 0.37
SREIZE S BmEEA
Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping Beneficial owner 486,000 0.26
SREIF A BEHEEAA
Mr. Lam Ka Po Beneficial owner 486,600 0.26
MREFLE BEamEEA
Ms. Chan Sau Chi (Note) Beneficial owner 1,120,200 0.60
BRF5 &/ MA (M EE) BEHEEAA

Note: 1,120,200 shares were held by her spouse.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors
nor their respective associate, had any interests or short
position in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as at 31 December
2010.

BiEE : 1,120,200fR MR 15 b HELBHE -

BREdEEEN  R_FT-—FTF+_-A
=t—R BEBEEIRFLAZIHEA
ITRARAHEEAREER (EERES
KRG GPIEXVER) Z (D - HBRER D
SESFPHEEEAERLER
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year was
the Company, its holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the share option scheme of the Company are set
out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year, no share option was granted pursuant to the
scheme and no share option was outstanding as at 31 December
2010.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its holding
companies, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERRK

At 31 December 2010, the register of substantial shareholders WR=-Z—ZF+—-HA=+—0 ' RBEAQTILES
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO R HIE&HIFI36IEEBEFE 2 F ERFEOMATEE
shows that, other than the interests disclosed above in respect &% - B EXFriREBRE TES 2 #=0  THRERD
of certain Directors, the following shareholders had notified the @R A G ERANA G D EE/TIRAN 2 IS -
Company of their relevant interests in the issued share capital of

the Company.
Long position RE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company (“Shares”) AR AR ETEO. 10872 ZEA ([ 17 ])
Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
Number of capital of the
issued shares Company
held HZARAT
Name of shareholder Notes  Nature of interest T 81T ERITRARZ
REREHE Mzt REmME RHEE BHOBEDL
Hallgain Management Limited (a) Beneficial owner 1,500,000 0.05
(“Hallgain”) EnaA
(b) Interest of controlled 1,980,822,500 66.02
corporations
Rt EEER
KCHL Beneficial owner 65,173,500 217
BEtLT BEmEEA
(c) Interest of controlled 1,915,649,000 63.85
corporations
REhEE R
Jamplan (BVI) Limited (“Jamplan”) Beneficial owner 1,790,000,000 59.66
BEHEEAA
(d) Interest of a controlled 125,649,000 419
corporation
Rt EEER
Capital Research and Management Beneficial owner 212,493,851 7.08
Company EnEEA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)
Long position (continued)
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company (“Shares”)

(continued)
Notes:
(a) At 31 December 2010, (i) no shareholder of Hallgain was entitled to

exercise, or control the exercise of, directly or indirectly, one-third or more
of the voting power at general meetings of Hallgain, and Hallgain and its
directors are not accustomed to act in accordance with any shareholder’s
direction; and (i) Messrs. Cheung Kwok Wa, Cheung Kwok Ping and Lam
Ka Po, being Directors, are also directors of Hallgain.

(b) The interests are held by KCHL directly and indirectly. KCHL is owned as
to approximately 31.25% of the entire issued capital of KCHL by Hallgain as
at 31 December 2010.

(c) The interests are held by Jamplan directly and indirectly. Jamplan is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of KCHL. Mr. Lam Ka Po, being a Director, is
also a director of Jamplan.

(d) The interests are indirectly held by Jamplan through its wholly-owned
subsidiary, Kingboard Investments Limited (“KIL”). Messrs. Cheung Kwok
Wa and Cheung Kwok Ping, being Directors, are also directors of KIL.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company had not been
notified of any other relevant interests or short positions in the
issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2010.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied
with the applicable code provisions of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December
2010, save for the deviation that the non-executive Director
and independent non-executive Directors were not appointed
for specific terms pursuant to paragraph A.4.1 of the Code.
Notwithstanding the aforesaid deviation, all the Directors (including
the non-executive Director and independent non-executive
Directors) are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the Company’s annual general meeting in compliance with
the Company’s Articles of Association. As such, the Company
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure
that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no less
exacting than those in the Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Director’s securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
the required standards set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”). Following a specific enquiry, each
Director has confirmed he or she has complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code and the code of conduct
regarding Director’s securities transactions adopted by the
Company throughout the year ended 31 December 2010.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent for the purposes of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s largest customer was KCHL'’s
subsidiaries other than the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“KCHL Group”), and the percentage of sales attributable to the
KCHL Group was 20%. The percentage of sales attributable to
the Group’s five largest customers combined was less than 30%
of the Group’s total revenue. During the year, the percentage of
purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and the
five largest suppliers combined were 21% and 59%, respectively.
The percentage of purchase attributable to KCHL, one of the
Group’s five largest supplier was 7%.

At 31 December 2010, KCHL, a shareholder holding more than
5% of the Company’s share capital, had a beneficial interest in
one of the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers. Save as
disclosed above, none of the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the
major customers or suppliers noted above.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group had the following connected transactions with its
connected persons during the year:

(@) The Group purchased chemicals from the KCHL Group
amounting to approximately HK$504,457,000.

(b) The Group sold laminates and related upstream
component materials to the KCHL Group amounting to
approximately HK$1,087,226,000 and HK$1,282,636,000,
respectively.

(c) The Group provided drilling services to the KCHL Group
amounting to approximately HK$221,231,000.

(d) The Group purchased drill bits and machineries from
Hallgain and its subsidiaries (the “Hallgain Group”)
amounting to approximately HK$14,019,000 and
HK$6,538,000, respectively.

(e) The Group sold copper to Hallgain Group amounting to
approximately HK$170,242,000.

KCHL is the Company’s ultimate holding company and Hallgain
is a controlling shareholder of KCHL. As such, the KCHL Group
and Hallgain Group are deemed to be connected persons of the
Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued
an unqualified letter containing the findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
by the Group in page 28 in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of
the Listing Rules. The independent non-executive Directors
have reviewed the continuing connected transactions and the
unqualified letter from the auditor and have confirmed that the
aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been entered
into by the Group in the ordinary course of its business, on
normal commercial terms, and in accordance with the terms
of the agreements governing such transactions that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The purchase of chemicals from the KCHL Group during the year
did not exceed the aggregate annual cap for the financial year
ended 31 December 2010 approved by the shareholders of the
Company of HK$548,800,000, while the sale of laminates and
related upstream component materials and provision of drilling
services to the KCHL Group during the year did not exceed the
aggregate annual caps for the financial year ended 31 December
2010 of HK$3,834,000,000.

The purchase of drills bits and machineries from Hallgain
Group during the year did not exceed the aggregate annual
cap for the financial year ended 31 December 2010 approved
by the shareholders of the Company of HK$15,607,000
and HK$7,000,000, respectively, while the sale of copper to
Hallgain Group during the year did not exceed the aggregate
annual caps for the financial year ended 31 December 2010 of
HK$180,000,000.

EMOLUMENT POLICY
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee having regard to the relevant Director’s
experience, responsibility and the time devoted to the business
of the Group.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees. During the year
ended 31 December 2010, no share option was granted
pursuant to the scheme.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association although there are no
restrictions against such rights under company laws in the
Cayman Islands.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2010.

AUDITOR

A resolution to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
as auditor of the Company will be proposed for approval by
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Cheung Kwok Wa
CHAIRMAN

7 March 2011
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Corporate Governance Report
TRERBE

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Kingboard Laminates
Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries,
the “Group”) recognises the importance of corporate governance
practice of a listed company. It is in the interest of the
stakeholders and shareholders for a listed company to operate
in a transparent manner with the adoptions of various self-
regulatory policies, procedures and monitoring mechanisms and
a clear definition of accountability of directors and management.

During the year under review, the Board has complied with the
applicable provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules except with a deviation from paragraph A.4.1 of the Code.
Under paragraph A.4.1 of the Code, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
Currently, the non-executive director and the independent non-
executive directors of the Company are not appointed for specific
terms but are subject to retirement by rotation and are eligible for
re-election. In addition to the Code, which is mandatory in nature,
the Board also observes certain recommended best practices
(“Recommended Best Practices”) contained in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules and has adopted certain Recommended Best
Practices which are suitable to the Company’s current situation.
The Board will continuously enhance the corporate governance
standard of the Company by reference to the Recommended
Best Practices whenever suitable and appropriate.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
director’s securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
the required standards set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code”). Following a specific enquiry, each director
confirmed he or she has complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code and the code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions adopted by the Company.
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DIRECTORS

The Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control
of the Group and is entrusted with the responsibility
to supervise the management of the business and the
affairs of the Group. The Group has adopted internal
guidelines in setting forth matters that require the Board’s
approval. Apart from its statutory responsibilities, the
Board approves the Group’s strategic plan, annual
budget, key operational initiatives, major investments and
funding decisions. It also reviews the Group’s financial
performance, identifies principal risks of the Group’s
business and ensures implementation of appropriate
systems to manage these risks. Daily business operations
and administrative functions of the Group are delegated
to the management.

The Board meets regularly and as warranted by particular
circumstances. Notices and agendas are prepared by
the Company Secretary as delegated by the Chairman
of the Board and distributed to the Board members
within reasonable time before the meetings. Relevant
meeting papers are also sent to directors well before
the meetings, informing them of the background and
giving explanation on matters to be brought before the
Board. All directors are given the opportunity to include
matters in the agendas for Board meetings. To ensure the
directors make decisions objectively and in the interests
of the Company, the Company’s articles of association
provide that any director shall abstain from voting on any
resolutions in which he/she or his/her associates is/are
materially interested nor be counted in the quorum of the
meeting. Draft and final versions of the minutes of Board
meetings are sent to all directors for their comment and
records respectively within a reasonable time after the
board meeting and are kept by the Company Secretary.
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DIRECTORS (continued) A. EE®m)
The Board (continued) =3 {¢=))
During the year under review, the Board had held 4 REBEFEERN  EFRITTIUASH
meetings and the directors’ attendance at Board meetings EENEEgeaNEEREgeR 2t
and Board committees’ meetings were as follows: fEEEERINT
Audit Nomination Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
=g ENZES REZEE FWzEE
83 f g3 S
Number of Meeting g1 E 4 3 1 1
Executive directors HITEE
Cheung Kwok Wa (Chairman) REIE(LE) 4 - - -
Cheung Kwok Keung (Vianaging Director) SRl (& Z 1647 7%) 4 - - -
Cheung Kwok Ping REIF 4 - - -
Lam Ka Po MRE 4 - - -
Cheung Ka Ho RXR 4 - - -
Chan Sau Chi BAEL 4 - - -
Liu Min Blst 4 - - -
Zhou Pei Feng [FEE 4 - - -
Non-executive director HHTEE
Lo Ka Leong EX% 4 3 1 1
Independent non-executive directors BUHHTEE
Chan Chamwut Bernard HER 4 3 1 1
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael RS 4 3 1 1
Leung Tai Chiu Ay 4 3 1 1
Mok Yiu Keung, Peter RiR 4 3 1 1

The directors have observed the importance of directing EFEHABRE AT TEREEREE AT
and supervising the Company’s affair at a more regular EHCEEMN  KERZREESR  EF
interval. After consulting all directors, Board meetings eVSHERFESTESRETEERIT
have been preliminarily scheduled to be held at quarterly % EFRTIPREREE °

interval and no less than 4 times in the coming year.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Division and responsibilities

The Board is headed by the Chairman whose role differs
from that of the Managing Director of the Company.
The roles of the Chairman and Managing Director are
segregated and are not exercised by the same individual.

The duties of the Chairman include (but not limited to) the
following:

schedule meetings that enable the Board to
perform its duties and responsibilities and
to ensure all key and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely manner without
interfering the Company’s operations;

prepare meeting agenda after consultation with
the Managing Director;

exercise control over quality, quantity and
timeliness of the flow of information between
Management and the Board and to ensure
decisions are made on a fully informed basis by
the directors; and

assist in ensuring compliance with the Listing
Rules and the Company’s guidelines on corporate
governance.

The Managing Director is mainly responsible for the
overall strategic planning and day-to-day management of
the Group.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Division and responsibilities (continued)

The Board currently comprises thirteen members, four
of whom are independent non-executive directors who
are expressly identified in all corporate communications
that disclose the names of directors of the Company.
At least one of the independent non-executive directors
possesses appropriate professional qualifications (or
accounting or related financial management expertise)
as required by the Listing Rules. The composition of the
Board is as follows:

Executive directors

Cheung Kwok Wa (Chairman)

Cheung Kwok Keung (Managing Director)
Cheung Kwok Ping

Lam Ka Po

Cheung Ka Ho

Chan Sau Chi

Liu Min

Zhou Pei Feng

Non-executive director
Lo Ka Leong

Independent non-executive directors
Chan Charnwut Bernard

Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Leung Tai Chiu

Mok Yiu Keung, Peter

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa, Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung and Mr.
Cheung Kwok Ping are brothers and are uncles of Mr.
Cheung Ka Ho.

Each of the non-executive directors (including the
independent non-executive directors) was appointed for
an initial term of two years commencing in November
2006. The appointment of each of the non-executive
directors will continue after initial term unless terminated
by three months’ notice in writing served by either party
to the other. Currently, the non-executive director and the
independent non-executive directors were not appointed
for specific terms but are subject to retirement by rotation
and are eligible for re-election. The Board considers that
although such arrangement deviates from paragraph
A.4.1 of the Code, sufficient measures have been taken
to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance
practices are no less exacting than those in the Code.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Division and responsibilities (continued)

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation of his
independence as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

The Board comprises directors who collectively provide
core competencies, sales and marketing experience
and technical knowledge in laminates and its upstream
materials, administration and management experience in
the PRC factories, financial and accounting skill, as well
as in-house advice to comply with international laws and
regulations. The current Board size of thirteen directors
with a balance of skills and experience is appropriate for
effective decision making, taking into account the nature
and scope of the operations of the Company.

Appointment, re-election and removal

The Company’s articles of association set out a
formal, considered and transparent procedure for the
appointment of new directors to the Board. Any director
appointed by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or
as addition to the Board shall retire and be eligible for re-
appointment at the next following general meeting after
appointment. The appointment of directors are fixed for
a specified term, but at every annual general meeting
one-third of the directors, including the Chairman, shall
be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by
shareholders. The directors appointed by the Board who
are subject to retirement and re-election as mentioned
above shall be taken into account in calculating the total
number of directors for the time being but shall not be
taken into account in calculating the number of directors
who are to retire by rotation. All directors eligible for
re-election shall have their biographical details made
available to the shareholders to enable them to make an
informed decision on their re-election. Any appointment,
resignation, removal or re-designation of director shall be
timely disclosed to the shareholders by announcement
and shall include in such announcement, the reasons
given by the director for his resignation.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Responsibilities of Directors

The Company and the Board require each director to
keep abreast of his responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company. Every director is required
to devote sufficient time and involvement in the affairs
of the Board and the material matters of the Company
and to serve the Board with such degree of care and
due diligence given his own expertise, qualification and
professionalism.

Every newly appointed director shall receive a
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on the
first occasion of his appointment. All directors shall
be updated and briefed on continuing professional
development as is necessary to ensure that they have a
proper understanding of the operations and the business
of the Company and that they are fully aware of their
responsibilities under the applicable laws and regulations.
The Board has a procedure for directors, either individually
or as a group, in the furtherance of their duties, to take
independent professional advice, if necessary, at the
Company’s expenses to enable and facilitate the directors
to make well considered decisions. Appropriate insurance
coverage for directors’ and officers’ liability has been
arranged against possibility of legal action to be taken
against the directors and the management.

Supply of and access to information

The management of the Company has an obligation
to furnish the Board with complete, adequate and
appropriate information in such form and such quality in a
timely manner so as to enable them to make an informed
decision and to discharge their duties and responsibilities
as directors of the Company. All the directors are given
separate and independent access to the Company’s
senior management.

All the directors are given separate and independent
access to the Company Secretary, whose role includes
ensuring that Board procedures are observed and
followed, and that applicable rules and regulations are
complied with. The Company Secretary attends all the
meetings of the Board and Board committees and is
responsible for drafting minutes and keeping minutes
records which can be accessed by any director for
inspection.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The level and make-up of remuneration and
disclosure

The Board has set up a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) which comprises four
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr.
Chan Charnwut Bernard (Chairman), Mr. Chan Yue
Kwong, Michael, Mr. Leung Tai Chiu and Mr. Mok Yiu
Keung, Peter, to formulate policies and procedures for
determining the remuneration of directors and senior
management and other remuneration related matters. The
Remuneration Committee is set up with written terms of
reference which set out clearly its duties and authorities
delegated by the Board, including the following specific
duties:

° formulate the framework or Board policy for
determining the remuneration of the Company’s
Board and senior management. The objective
of such policy should ensure that members of
the senior management of the Company are
provided with appropriate incentives to encourage
enhanced performance and are, in a fair and
reasonable manner, rewarded for their individual
contributions to the success of the Company;

° recommend specific remuneration packages
including, where appropriate, allowances,
bonuses, benefits in kind, incentive payments,
and share options, if any, for each executive
director and the Managing Director and such
other members of senior management as it is
designated to consider;

o recommend targets for any performance-linked
pay schemes operated by the Company, taking
into account remuneration and employment
conditions within the industry and in comparable
companies; and

o recommend to the Board the remuneration of non-
executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) taking into account factors
such as effort, time spent and responsibilities.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

The level and make-up of remuneration and
disclosure (continued)

When recommending the remuneration package for each
individual director, the Remuneration Committee will
consider his qualification and experience, specific duties
and responsibilities assigned to him by the Board and the
prevailing market packages available for similar position.
The emoluments of the directors on a named basis for
the year under review is set out on pages 106 to 107 in
note 13 to the consolidated financial statements. Review
and comparison in terms of directors’ emoluments
package and net profits of the Group are made from
time to time with comparable listed industrial companies
with similar capitalisation to the Group. Considering all
such factors, the Remuneration Committee would make
recommendation on the remuneration package for each
director after consultation with the Chairman.

During the year under review, the Remuneration
Committee had convened one meeting to consider the
remuneration packages for all directors.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the Company’s account which gives a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Company. The
Company deploys appropriate and sufficient resources to
prepare unaudited half-yearly account and audited yearly
account. Senior management is required to present and
explain the financial reporting and matters that materially
affect or may have material impact on the financial
performance and operations of the Company to the Audit
Committee and the Board and respond to the queries
and concerns raised by the Audit Committee and the
Board to their satisfaction. The statement of the auditor
of the Company about their reporting responsibilities
on the consolidated financial statements is set out in
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 47 to 48 of this
annual report.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)
Internal controls

The Group has in place a system of internal controls, the
key elements of which are as follows:

o formal policies and procedures are in place,
including the documentation of key processes,
procedures and rules relating to the delegation of
authorities. These allow the monitoring of controls
and restrict the unauthorised use of the Group
assets;

o experienced and suitably qualified staff take
responsibility for important business functions.
Annual appraisal procedures have been
established to maintain standards of performance;

° monthly business and financial reports are
prepared, providing relevant, timely, reliable and
up-to-date financial and other information; budget
variances are investigated as appropriate; and

° an internal audit function, which reports directly
to the Audit Committee, is in place to determine
whether the above procedures are properly carried
out.

The Board has conducted a review on the effectiveness of
the above internal control system of the Group including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management and will conduct such review at least once
a year, so as to ensure the shareholders’ investment and
the Company’s assets are properly safeguarded. The
Board is satisfied that, based on the information supplied,
coupled with its own observations and with the assistance
of the Audit Committee, the present internal controls and
risk management processes are satisfactory for the nature
and size of the Group’s operations and business.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)
Internal controls (continued)

In addition to the internal control system, the Board has
established an internal audit team that reports directly
to the Audit Committee. The internal audit team will
independently audit various functions, operations and
systems existed in the Company according to their
weight of significance to the Company as well as the
priority list recommended by the Audit Committee. The
internal audit team will prepare an internal audit report
highlighting the deficiencies and weaknesses in existing
audit functions, operations and systems for discussion by
the Audit Committee and the Board, and based on these
findings the Board will instruct senior management to take
appropriate corrective and improvement actions.

Audit Committee

The Board has established the Audit Committee with
specific written terms of reference setting out duties,
responsibilities and authorities delegated to them by the
Board. The major duties and responsibilities of the Audit
Committee include the followings:

o review with the external auditor, the audit plan;

° review with the external auditor, their evaluation of
the system of internal accounting controls;

o review the scope and results of the internal audit
procedures;
° review the statement of financial position and

income statement of the Company and the
consolidated statement of financial position and
income statement of the Group and submit them
to the Board;

o nominate persons as auditor;

° review with the internal and external auditors their
findings on their evaluation of the Company’s
system of internal controls for the purpose of
assisting the Board in developing policies that
would enhance the controls and operating
systems of the Company; and

° review connected transactions and examine the
adequacy of internal controls of the Group as part
of the standard procedures.

C.

BERZE &)
AEREEfE ()

BRASEESIEN  EEEERLAIIZ
H5 M BERAEZZESER - REZ
HHE MG ERBARRRTSERE &
EREGZEEN  WREREZESES
ZEBERF BN BERZERE  BIER
R o NE BB ABSREANIPZE
Hd o BHIRNEZRE  BIERRGZ
ﬁﬁ&ﬁ%'uﬁ%%§§@&§$§§
W MEREHREZSERBERERS
WE@F%Wﬁ A IE M it o

BEREES
EEQCRUBKREZES  ACEEAH
HARBEGE #EESLZRTHZ

BENEN BREZEGZIZRERR
THEIR
. NS B AR BT R BT &

. EOMNERZ B AR RS
EEHE 2R E

AR

. E N ARAZ B Fr 2 08 S AR

. BHARBZMBAHRE R IWER
M&$%IZ AW%#&%&W

. IREIZELED -

. EW%&%%@@%%?& EIRIN

RAINEREIESE 2 FFEAER - A

HBEEE R AR A AR E
EREEIEZHBR - R

. EREERFZ —BD - EHEE
RGRBERELENDEILERE T
5 o

Annual Report 2010 Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited 41

T-TFFR BERERERERDA



Corporate Governance Report (¥ &8 E

42

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

The duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the
scope and results of the audit and its cost effectiveness
and the independence and objectivity of the Company’s
auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. The Audit Committee
will review the independence of the Company’s auditor,
the resources and adequacy of the internal audit function,
at least once a year. Where the auditor also supplies
non-audit services to the Company, the Committee
will keep the nature and extent of such services under
review, seeking to balance between the maintenance of
objectivity and value for money. During the year under
review, the fees paid/payable to the Company’s auditor
in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by the
Company’s auditor to the Group were as follows:
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Amount (HK$)
SF(BIT)
Nature of services RISHE
Audit services ZH R 3,000,000
Non-audit services IERZH R
() Tax services (i) IS AR TS 220,000
(i) Other services (i) HAtb AR 250,000

The Audit Committee has undertaken a review of all the
non-audit services provided by the Company’s auditor
and concluded that in their opinion such services did
not affect the independence of the auditor. The Board
has appointed an accountant to be responsible for the
accounting and financial matters of the Group and the
Audit Committee has free access to the accountant and
senior management of the Group and to any financial
and relevant information which enable them to discharge
their audit committee function effectively and efficiently.
Besides internal assistance being available, the Audit
Committee may request for assistance and advice from
external auditors as and when they think necessary at
the expenses of the Company. The Audit Committee
shall meet with external auditor without the presence
of executive directors to discuss the Group’s financial
reporting and any major and financial matters arising
during the year under review at least once a year.
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C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued) C. RBERERH#®

Audit Committee (continued)
In addition, the Audit Committee is authorised:

. to investigate any matter within its written terms of
reference;

o to have full access to and co-operation by the
management;

° to have full discretion to invite any director or

executive officer to attend its meetings; and

° to have reasonable resources to enable it to
discharge its functions properly.

The Board will ensure that the members of the Audit
Committee are appropriately qualified to discharge their
responsibilities and at least one member has accounting
and related financial management expertise or experience.
The Audit Committee comprises four independent non-
executive directors and one non-executive director,
namely Mr. Leung Tai Chiu (Chairman), Mr. Chan
Charnwut Bernard, Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, Mr.
Mok Yiu Keung, Peter and Mr. Lo Ka Leong.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management
the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and discussed auditing, internal control and
financial reporting matters, including a review of the
audited annual financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2010.
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D. DELEGATION BY THE BOARD EEERINER

Management function EIETHEE

The Company’s articles of association set out matters ARR BB ERRAESERRAERES

which are specifically reserved to the Board for its BRAEZER - PITEST —RIMEAR

decision. Executive directors normally meet on an TIER g WEH2ESREREEB Y

informal basis every two weeks and participate in senior @Fn UWBEEAEBRAHZEENLK

management meetings on a regular basis to keep abreast R BERREREREEILRREAEDEHR
of the latest operations and performance of the Group TEEQHEIZ2ERLER TEEBDE
and to monitor and ensure the management carry out EWER  BRERREEESeHETITHE

the directions and strategies set by the Board correctly FeRRARAMELRAEZEE °

and appropriately. Clear instructions are given to the

management as to the matters which should bring to the

attention and be determined by the Board on behalf of

the Company.

Board committees EEZE8

The Board has set up three Board committees, BEEEeCRUY-EZES  DRAEKE

namely Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and 8g REZESLFMEZEE > Hil/A

Remuneration Committee, each chaired by different TRABYIFNTEELEER - UHHE

independent non-executive director, to assist the Board EERTEZECRZRZEBETEEE - &

in discharging functions specific to each committee. Each EEZERHEMIHESRTNRESR

Board committee has its own written terms of reference CFEAZIRE) - B RTHYEES

setting out the principles, procedures and arrangements e R BFNTHEREBHER o

which are substantially the same as those for the Board.

The Nomination Committee comprises four members REZESHNBIBIIEHNITESE : BHA

who are independent non-executive directors, namely FSEAE(ER)  RERBLLE  REBBEAL

Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael (Chairman), Mr. Chan LERBELEER - BIEREZEZESEM

Charnwut Bernard, Mr. Leung Tai Chiu and Mr. Mok Yiu TSR RETEe 2T ERE

Keung, Peter. According to the written terms of reference B

of the Nomination Committee, the major responsibilities of

the Nomination Committee include:

o regularly review the structure, size and composition . THIRESTS 228 - ASUAERK
of the Board and make recommendations to the EH % - W RABIEHN
Board with regard to any adjustments that are AERNESSIREHERS
deemed necessary;

° review whether or not an independent non- o FETRBIME » BFERFBILIE
executive director is independent for the purpose HITEEEZEEBIAL
of the Listing Rules on annual basis;

o be responsible for identifying and nominating for . EEECHBETEREBEEDEKIR
the approval of the Board, candidates to fill board BANE - UHES SO FBUE
vacancies as and when they arise; HESSTHR
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD (continued)

Board committees (continued)

o assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole
and the contribution by each individual director to
the effectiveness of the Board; and

o be responsible for re-nomination having regard
to the director’s contribution and performance,
including, if applicable, as an independent director.

During the year under review and up to the date of
the report, the Nomination Committee had convened
one meeting for the nomination of directors for re-
election in the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company. The Nomination Committee had resolved
that Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa, Mr. Lam Ka Po, Mr. Lo Ka
Leung, Mr. Chan Charmnmwut Bernard and Mr. Leung Tai
Chiu, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
The Board has been informed by Mr. Chan Charnwut
Bernard that he will not offer himself for re-election as a
Director at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company as he intends to retire immediately after
the meeting. Mr. Chan has confirmed that he has no
disagreement with the Board and that there is no matter
relating to his retirement that needs to be brought to the
attention of the shareholders of the Company. The Board
would like to extend its gratitude to Mr. Chan for his
valuable contribution to the Company in the past years.
Therefore, Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa, Mr. Lam Ka Po, Mr.
Lo Ka Leong and Mr. Leung Tai Chiu were nominated by
the Nomination Committee to stand for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Board endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue
with shareholders. All directors are encouraged to attend
the general meetings to have personal communication
with shareholders. In annual general meeting, Chairman
of the Board and the chairman of each committee
are required to attend and answer questions from
shareholders in respect of the matters that they are
responsible and accountable for. The external auditor
is also required to be present to assist the directors in
addressing any relevant queries by shareholders. The
Company has also set up a public relations website
which enables the shareholders and public to post their
questions, comments and opinions in relation to the
Group to the Board.

The Company’s annual general meeting (“AGM”) and
extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) provide good
opportunities for shareholders to air their views and
ask directors and management questions regarding
the Company. All shareholders of the Company receive
the annual report, circulars and notices of AGM and
EGM and other corporate communications in a form
chosen by each shareholder of the Company. The
notices are also published on the Company’s website at
www.kblaminates.com. Separate resolutions are required
at general meetings on each distinct issue. A shareholder is
permitted to appoint any number of proxies to attend and
vote in his stead.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
18 M A% B AT

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF KINGBOARD LAMINATES
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 49 to 145, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2010, and the consolidated
income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as
to whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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BT I FRAMBHREAEE NMEAEAEAHR
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Independent Auditor’s Report 183 #% S{Eh R &

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
December 2010 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

7 March 2011
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Consolidated Income Statement

~ 2
melER
For the year ended 31 December 2010 &2 = FE—FF+ = =+—HI FEF

2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
FisE THET T
Revenue ] 6 13,055,205 9,070,983
Cost of sales HEMAR (9,875,039) (6,519,431)
Gross profit EF 3,180,166 2 551,552
Other income Hinlg A 8 68,717 56,574
Distribution costs AR (274,128) (208,057)
Administrative costs TR (446,506) (405,474)
Discount on acquisition of W — RN B A RREIMER
additional interest in ZITE
a subsidiary _ 11,189
Gain on disposal of available- HEMHEHERE 2 ke
for-sale investments 173,463 -
Impairment loss on available- FIEEERE 2 RERE
for-sale investments 9 - (156,367)
Finance costs BEMAK 10 (65,245) (55,477)
Profit before taxation R F5 AT v A 2,636,467 1,793,940
Income tax expense FriS B % 11 (269,783) (128,117)
Profit for the year RNEE % T 12 2,366,684 1,665,823
Profit for the year attributable to: N4 [ 4 M fE(E 558
Owners of the Company PN/NSIES YN 2,280,380 1,648,031
Non-controlling interests JEIEARRE RS 86,304 17,792
2,366,684 1,665,823
Earnings per share GRRER 15
Basic AR HK$0.760% 7T HK$0.5497% 7T
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
e ElaAR

For the year ended 31 December 2010 &2 = FE—FF+ = =+—HI FEF

50 = FHR BERBERERERDA
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2010 2009
—E-2F —ZTNEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHIT
Profit for the year REEHF 2,366,684 1,665,823
Other comprehensive income: Hip 2wk
Loss on cash flow hedges WM FEE (6,517) (26,407)
Reclassification adjustments relating to MR RE PR MIEL 2
transfer of cash flow hedges B EREE 29,650 28,709
Fair value gain on properties transferred MEEBEINENEY
to investment properties N EMNE 7,268 -
Fair value gain (loss) on available-for-sale AMEHERE 2 A TE
investments Wiz (E518) 178,337 (156,017)
Release upon disposal of H e A i IR A B o)
available-for-sale investments (173,463) -
Impairment on available-for-sale AEHERERE
investments - 156,367
Exchange differences arising on RAFEZ2MEBMEE S
translation to presentation currency PEH =% 270,625 9,136
Other comprehensive income for the year AN [E H fih 2 Ez 305,900 11,788
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEEEMEEEE 2,672,584 1,677,611
Total comprehensive income attributable to: 2 [ Wz ASEFE (G 1A 48
Owners of the Company VN/NSIEEYEUN 2,560,648 1,658,767
Non-controlling interests TR i e 111,936 18,844
2,672,584 1,677,611
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B ER IR R

At 31 December 2010 R —FE—ZFF+ - H=+—H

2010 2009
—E-EF —ZETNF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
BsE FHET AT
Non-current assets IEmENEE
Investment properties HEME 16 75,624 56,873
Properties, plant and equipment ME - BB MR 17 5,425,825 5,348,082
Prepaid lease payments A EIE 18 386,701 296,420
Available-for-sale investments A HERE 19 730,751 403,748
Properties held for development FREYE 20 244,985 -
Non-current deposits IEMENF] & 21 110,176 51,775
Deferred tax assets RGBS = 22 7,671 5,964
Goodwill EES 23 238 238
6,981,971 6,163,100
Current assets MENEEE
Inventories w5 24 2,286,037 1,815,784
Trade and other receivables and & 5 R H th B BRZ &
prepayments B FRIE 25 3,592,366 2,619,806
Bills receivables B EE 25 1,126,077 725,691
Prepaid lease payments FENEERE 18 7,481 5,542
Amounts due from fellow FEWRRHME R
subsidiaries FE] 26 456,259 323,070
Taxation recoverable AT Y B 5 18 7,063 7,063
Bank balances and cash RITEBRNIRS 27 1,982,571 2,039,662
9,457,854 7,536,618
Current liabilities RBBEE
Trade and other payables B 5N EMERBRR 28 1,243,969 892,435
Bills payables ANEE 28 403,417 270,348
Amounts due to fellow FERNRRNEBAFIEIE
subsidiaries 26 28,012 20,040
Derivative financial instruments PTESR T A 29 43,331 11,628
Taxation payable JESARIE 348,243 264,088
Bank borrowings — amount due RITEE ——FAN2H
within one year 7 A 30 2,147,486 1,030,516
4,214,458 2,489,055
Net current assets B EEFE 5,243,396 5,047,563
Total assets less current liabilites B EAERAZSHEE 12,225,367 11,210,663
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 44 B & AR 0 3=
At 31 December 2010 R=ZFE—FF+=-H=+—H

2010 2009
—g-BF —TENE
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
BiaE FHET FATT
Non-current liabilities EmEBE
Deferred tax liabilities BEIEFRIEAE 22 2,566 1,816
Derivative financial instruments TSR TE 29 - 32,971
Bank borrowings — amount due IRITEE — —F14 55
after one year | 30 1,369,414 1,963,348
1,371,980 1,998,135
10,853,387 9,212,528
Capital and reserves A& %ttt
Share capital R& A 31 300,000 300,000
Reserves HE 9,569,990 8,027,709
Equity attributable to owners of ZA/NSIES DN ey
the Company 9,869,990 8,327,709
Non-controlling interests IEEAR T 983,397 884,819
Total equity BARGREE 10,853,387 9,212,528
The consolidated financial statements on pages 49 to 145 were #EHe@WR T ——F= A+ A ERISETIES
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 7 40B &= F 1458 2 i35 B - WH H|ESK
March 2011 and are signed on its behalf by: xE=Z:
Cheung Kwok Wa Cheung Kwok Keung
REIEE REA
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
= 4
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
rERnEER

For the year ended 31 December 2010 % —E—F&+ - H=+—HIFFZF
Attributable to owners of the Company
EOGEEIN 1
Property  Investment Non-
Share Share Translation revaluation revaluation  Hedging Special  Statutory Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
NEEE  REER

Rx  ROEE ENRE i BE  HMEE  NHRE  tERG  HMEE  REE At HERER  &AEE
HK000  HK$000  HKBOOO  HK000  HKSO000  HK000  HKFO00  HKS00D  HK$000  HKBOOD  HKS000  HK$O000  HK§O00
FiEr T Tan Fikr T Tan TEn T T TEn kT T Tan
(note 32) (note)
(Ffiz32) (Ifst)

Balance at 1 January 2009 R-BENE-A-H
2 300000 1,097,104 830,696 - - (35,273) 757,689 6,185 - 4312541 7268942 889,208 8,158,145

Proft for the year RERRT - - - - - - - - - 1648031 1,648,031 17,792 1,665,823
Loss on cash flow hedges Tﬂimzﬁ/%?ﬁ - - - - - 26,407) - - - - 26,407) - 26,407)
Exchange differences arising on R HZ2RERR

tranglation to presentation curency B4 7EXEE - - 8,084 - - - - - - - 8,084 1,052 9,136
Transfer o proft or oss on cash flow @IE ;ﬁﬁ’ﬁﬁ@

hedges ZBa - - - - - 28,709 - - - - 28,709 - 28,709
Fair value loss on available-for-sale LﬁHj%? B70TE

investments [ - - - - (156017) - - - - - (156017) - (156,017)
Impaiment on available-for-sale MEHERE 2 RE

investments - - - - 156,367 = = - N N 156,367 - 156,367
Total comprenensive income for the year A58 2 FRE 28 - - 8,084 - 350 2302 - - - 1648031 1,658,767 18844 1677611

Acquisttion of additionalinterestina  UtBE— RN A8
subsidiary B - - - - - - - - - - - (17,951) (17,951)
Release upon disposal of a subsidiary  (HE—FEHBA RS

- - (514) - - - - - - 514 - - -
Dividend paid to minority shareholders St FHBAEZ
of subsidiaries PEREZRE - - - - - - - - - - - (5,217) (5217
Final dividend paid for the year ended  ERBZ-TTN\E
31 December 2008 TZA=+RiL
FERIRE - - - - - - - - - (300000) (300,000) - (300000)
\ntenm dlvidend paid for the year ended 2 T BE-TENE
31 December 2009 +ZA=+-RiLt
FERHRS - - - - - - - - - (300,000  (300,000) - (300,000)
Transfer to reserve HEERE - - - - - - - 11,849 - (11,849) - - -
- - (514) - - - - 11,849 - (611335  (600,000) (23228)  (623,228)
Balance at 31 December 2009 RZZEAETZR
=t-BzEH 300000 1,097,104 838,266 - 350 (32971) 757,689 18,034 - 5340237 8327709 884819 9212528
Profit for the year FERER - - - - - - - - - 2280380 2,280,380 8,304 2,366,684
Loss on cash flow hedges kbl ] - - - - - 8.517) - - - - (8.517) - 6517)
Exchange differences arising on RREZ2HELN
tranglation to presentetion curency B4 7EXEE - - 244993 - - - - - - - 244993 25,632 270,625
Fair value gain on properties transferred ¥ %S R ZRANE 7
to investment properties DTERE - - - 7,268 - - - - - - 7,268 - 7,268
Tranfertoproft orlossoncashfow 4 78 # s
hedges 35 - - - - - 29,650 - - - - 29,650 - 29,650
Fair value gain on avallable-for-sale B/ ERE 7 ATEE
investments g - - - - 178,337 - - - - - 178,337 - 178,337
Release upon disposal of available-for-  (HET i €5 R
sale investment A#[ - - - - (173463 - - - - - (173463 - (173,463)
Total comprehensive income for the yeari & B 2 ElH £ 8 - - 244993 7,268 4,874 23133 - - - 2280380 2560648 111936 2,672,584
Acquisition of addtional interestina  WiEE—REHIB AR &S
subsidiary i - - - - - - - - 1,633 - 1,683 (3,238) (1,605)
Dividend paid to minority shareholders 3t/ FHi B A7
of subsidiaries ’/ﬁﬂﬁizw - - - - - - - - - - - (10,1200 (10,120)
Final dividend paid for the year ended EREZ-TTNE
31 December 2009 T2A
FEAE - - - - - - - - - (5400000  (540,000) - (540,000)
Interim dividend pid for the year ended £ TEF
31 December 2010 =
ﬁrgq: HRe - - - - - - - - - [80000)  (480,000) - (480000)
Transfer to reserve HETRE - - - - - - - 13,698 - (13,698) - - -

- - - - - - - 13,698 1,633 (1033698 (1,018367) (13,358 (1,081,725)

Balance at 31 December 2010 R-Z-F£+-R
=t-BzEH 300000 1,097,104 1,083,259 7,268 5224 (9,838 757,689 31,782 1633 6595919 9,869,990 983,397 10,853,387

Note: Statutory fund, which is non-distributable, is appropriated from the profit B - RA PR EEEEIREREARLNE(FAEIES

after taxation of the Company’s subsidiaries established in the People’s B)YTHE ) 2 EAERNMERIZRARRRPBEKILZ
Republic of China (other than Hong Kong) (“PRC”) under the applicable B AT ZBRFBEFEHE o

laws and regulations in the PRC.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
ll‘/-.R IE:@U“JE%

For the year ended 31 December 2010 &2 = FE—FF+ = =+—HI FEF

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REER
Profit before taxation & 5% Bila A 2,636,467 1,793,940
Adjustments for: ATIEB EL A
Depreciation of properties, plant and ME - MEMREZITE
equipment 751,938 774,880
Release of prepaid lease payments TEHAEFRIERERD 7,180 7,061
Interest expenses and other finance FMBRITMEMREER
charges 65,245 55,477
Net impairment losses recognised on FLE 5 M E At FE IR SRR
trade and other receivables ZREBEFE 2,452 48,585
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AR ERE 2R EEE
investments - 156,367
Loss on disposal and write off of HE RMEME - BE &
properties, plant and equipment T R 1,319 3,874
Gain on fair value changes of WEMERNTHEZE)
investment properties 2 Wz (7,550) (9,095)
Loss on fair value changes of R e A HEES)
commodity forward contracts ZEE 33,493 11,628
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERHEERE 2 =
investments (173,463) -
Discount on acquisition of additional U B —REIB B A B EE SN
interest in a subsidiary ez 2 YTik = (11,189
Interest income MBI A (18,230) (18,223)
Operating cash flows before movements Rt EE S B BRI 2 K&
in working capital BeR=E 3,298,851 2,813,305
Increase in inventories FEE (437,297) (166,155)
Increase in trade and other receivables = 5‘; K E b R ER R R TR
and prepayments FRIBIE N (940,179) (750,380)
Increase in bills receivables i3 Hﬁlm?ﬁ“iﬁ n (400,386) (286,747)
Increase in amounts due from fellow B N NGI R
subsidiaries b=yl (126,238) (140,664)
Increase in properties held for FERYEIEN
development (159,185) -
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 K E b FEATBRFIE hn 246,545 90,167
Increase (decrease) in bills payables FEREBEINCRL) 133,069 (49,417)
Net (decrease) increase in derivative PTESHIT AR )G
financial instruments JRER (11,628) 2,772
Increase in amounts due to fellow FERTR R B A FIFIE
subsidiaries 0 7,972 9,222
Cash generated from operations I IR AT 2 I8 1,611,524 1,522,103
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BHEEFEH (10,285) -
Other income taxes paid HAbE IR (176,300) (97,512)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING REXBHERE
ACTIVITIES FEE 1,424,939 1,424,591
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows &2 &8RE&RER
For the year ended 31 December 2010 #t2 —F—FF+ - H=+—HIFFZ

2010 2009
—E-FF T NEF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt FHET THT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEWK
Purchase of properties, plantand BB W% - KR LG E
equipment (582,162) (237,109)
Deposits paid for acquisition of BEWE  WEMRE
properties, plant and equipment AR & (110,176) (51,775)
Prepaid lease payments made BRFENMEERE (81,913) (37,190)
Interest received = U F & 18,230 18,223
Proceed from disposal of ﬁ’%%% BEE
properties, plant and equipment  Fr{SFUAE 55,966 75,016
Proceed from disposal of ﬁ & — R B A TS
a subsidiary A 35 - 20,074
Proceeds from disposal of tﬂ’;—ﬁ HEREME
available-for-sale investments FE 534,915 -
Purchase of available-for-sale BEHEERE
investments (667,381) (5639,965)
Net cash outflow on acquisition KB B A RIEEZ
of subsidiaries RE i FEE 34 (96,244) -
Consideration paid for acquisition Y — M B A ")Zash
of additional interest in a RN ZRE
subsidiary - (6,762)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REXXKFFARE
ACTIVITIES FHE (928,765) (759,488)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mBESE S
New bank borrowings raised HigiRITEE 1,847,359 1,163,313
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITIEE (1,324,323) (1,377,843)
Dividends paid on ordinary shares 215 Z i@ A% A& 2. (1,020,000) (600,000
Dividends paid to minority EHW% Al
shareholders of subsidiaries DEAT R B (10,120) (5,277)

Interest and other finance charges Eﬁf | EREMFE

paid &M (72,997) (55,477)
Consideration paid for acquisition ¥ — RS P /8 A 7158 S

of additional interest in a RN ZRE

subsidiary (1,605) -
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ®t&EEATARS

ACTIVITIES pet ] (581,686) (875,284)
NET DECREASE INCASHAND B4 RBE4SZEIER

CASH EQUIVALENTS WA FEEE (85,512) (210,181)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS &¥I>H4BHS

AT THE BEGINNING OF THE ZEEH

YEAR 2,039,662 2,237,499
EFFECT OF FOREIGN ERgTE

EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES 28,421 12,344
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS &X>H4BHS

AT THE END OF THE YEAR, Z@EEE - BRIT

REPRESENTING BANK HEHRRBES

BALANCES AND CASH 1,982,571 2,039,662
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 # % —F—ZF#+ - A=+—HIFFZF

1.

56

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated and registered as an
exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman
Islands and its shares are listed on the main board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Its immediate parent company is Jamplan
(BVI) Ltd., a limited liability company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands and its ultimate holding company
is Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited (“KCHL"), a
company which is an exempted company with limited
liability incorporated in the Cayman Islands with its shares
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the section
headed “Corporate Information” on pages 2 to 3.

The functional currency of the Company and its principal
operating subsidiaries is Renminbi (“RMB”) while the
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars (“HK$”), which the management of the
Company considered is more beneficial for the users of
the consolidated financial statements.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 41.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied a number
of new and revised Standards, Amendments and
Interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) that are mandatorily effective for 2010 financial
year ends.

Except as described below, the application of the
new and revised HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material effect on the amounts reported in these
consolidated financial statements and disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r & B iRk KMzt
For the year ended 31 December 2010 # 2 —F—ZFF+ - A=+—HIFFEF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008) “Consolidated
and separate financial statements”

The application of HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008) has
resulted in changes in the Group’s accounting policies
for changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries of the
Group.

Specifically, the revised Standard has affected the
Group’s accounting policies regarding changes in the
Group’s ownership interests in its subsidiaries that do not
result in loss of control. In prior years, in the absence of
specific requirements in HKFRSs, increases in interests in
existing subsidiaries were treated in the same manner as
the acquisition of subsidiaries, with goodwill or a bargain
purchase gain being recognised, when appropriate; for
decreases in interests in existing subsidiaries that did
not involve a loss of control, the difference between the
consideration received and the adjustment to the non-
controlling interests was recognised in profit or loss.
Under HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008), all such increases
or decreases are dealt with in equity, with no impact on
goodwill or profit or loss.

When control of a subsidiary is lost as a result of a
transaction, event or other circumstance, the revised
Standard requires the Group to derecognise all
assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests at their
carrying amounts and to recognise the fair value of the
consideration received. Any retained interest in the former
subsidiary is recognised at its fair value at the date control
is lost. The resulting difference is recognised as a gain or
loss in profit or loss.

These changes have been applied prospectively from 1
January 2010 in accordance with the relevant transitional
provisions.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008) “Consolidated
and separate financial statements” (continued)
The application of the revised Standard has affected
the accounting for the Group’s acquisition of additional
interest in its subsidiary, Kingboard Copper Foil Holdings
Limited, in the current year. The change in policy has
resulted in the difference of HK$1,633,000 between
the consideration paid of HK$1,605,000 and the non-
controlling interests recognised of HK$3,238,000 being
recognised directly in equity, instead of in profit or loss.
Therefore, the change in accounting policy has resulted in
a decrease in the profit for the year of HK$1,633,000. In
addition, the cash consideration paid in the current year
of HK$1,605,000 has been included in cash flows used in
financing activities.

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2010

HKFRS 1 (Amendments)  Limited exemption from comparative
HKFRS 7 disclosures for first-time
adopters?

Severe hyperinflation and removal of fixed
dates for first-time adopters?

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)  Disclosures - Transfers of financial assets3

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments*

HKAS 12 (Amendments)  Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying

assets?

HKFRS 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related party disclosures®
HKAS 32 (Amendments)  Classification of rights issues’
HK(IFRIC*) - INT 14 Prepayments of a minimum funding
(Amendments) requirement®
HK(IFRIC) - INT 19 Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity
instruments?
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010 or
1 January 2011, as appropriate.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February
2010.

~N o 0 s N

* IFRIC represents the International Financial Reporting
Interpretation Committee.

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (as issued in November
2009) introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 “Financial
instruments” (as revised in November 2010) adds
requirements for financial liabilities and for derecognition.

Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets that are
within the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement” are subsequently
measured at either amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. All other debt investments and equity investments
are measured at their fair values at the end of subsequent
accounting periods.

In relation to financial liabilities, the significant change
relates to financial liabilities that are designated as at fair
value through profit or loss. Specifically, under HKFRS
9, for financial liabilities that are designated as at fair
value through profit or loss, the amount of change in
the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented in
other comprehensive income, unless the presentation
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are
not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Previously,
under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the
fair value of the financial liability designated as at fair value
through profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
anticipate that HKFRS 9 will be adopted in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the financial year
ending 31 December 2013 and that the application of
the new Standard may have a significant impact on
amounts reported in respect of those available-for-sale
equity investments which are currently stated at cost
less impairment and will be measured at fair value upon
adoption.

The amendments to HKAS 12 titled “Deferred tax:
Recovery of underlying assets” mainly deal with the
measurement of deferred tax for investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model in
accordance with HKAS 40 “Investment property”. Based
on the amendments, for the purposes of measuring
deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for
investment properties measured using the fair value
model, the carrying amounts of the investment properties
are presumed to be recovered through sale, unless
the presumption is rebutted in certain circumstances.
The Directors anticipate that the application of the
amendments to HKAS 12 will not have a significant
impact on deferred tax recognised for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model.

HKAS 24 “Related party disclosures” (as revised in 2009)
modifies the definition of a related party and simplifies
disclosures for government-related entities.

The disclosure exemptions introduced in HKAS 24 (as
revised in 2009) do not affect the Group because the
Group is not a government-related entity. However,
disclosures regarding related party transactions and
balances in these consolidated financial statements may
be affected when the revised version of the Standard
is applied in future accounting periods because some
counterparties that did not previously meet the definition
of a related party may come within the scope of the
Standard.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

The amendments to HKAS 32 titled “Classification of
rights issues” address the classification of certain rights
issues denominated in a foreign currency as either an
equity instrument or as a financial liability. To date, the
Group has not entered into any arrangements that would
fall within the scope of the amendments. However, if
the Group does enter into any rights issues within the
scope of the amendments in future accounting periods,
the amendments to HKAS 32 will have an impact on the
classification of those rights issues.

The Directors anticipate that the application of the other
new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment
properties and certain financial instruments, which are
measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition and up to
the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of the
Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, incomes and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to
non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. Prior to 1
January 2010, losses applicable to the non-controlling
interests in excess of the non-controlling interests in the
subsidiary’s equity were allocated against the interests of
the Group except to the extent that the non-controlling
interests had a binding obligation and were able to make
an additional investment to cover the losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries on or after 1 January 2010

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest
and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and
any non-controlling interests. Where certain assets of
the subsidiary are measured at revalued amounts or
fair values and the related cumulative gain or loss has
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity, the amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity are accounted for as if the Company had directly
disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred directly to retained earnings). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” or, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or a jointly
controlled entity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries prior to 1 January 2010

Increases in interests in existing subsidiaries were treated
in the same manner as the acquisition of subsidiaries,
with goodwill or a bargain purchase gain being
recognised where appropriate. For decreases in interests
in subsidiaries, regardless of whether the disposals would
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries,
the difference between the consideration received and
the adjustment to the non-controlling interests was
recognised in profit or loss.

Business combinations

Business combinations that took place on or after 1
January 2010

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee
Benefits” respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment transactions of the acquiree or
the replacement of an acquiree’s share-based
payment transactions with share-based payment
transactions of the Group are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment
at the acquisition date; and
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Business combinations that took place on or after 1

January 2010 (continued)

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations” are measured in accordance with that
Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss
as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may
be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-
by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at their fair value or another
measurement basis required by another Standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Business combinations that took place prior to 1 January
2010

Acquisition of businesses was accounted for using
the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition was
measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the
date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or
assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs
directly attributable to the business combination. The
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities that met the relevant conditions for recognition
were generally recognised at their fair value at the
acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition was recognised as an
asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the cost of the acquisition over the Group’s interest in the
recognised amounts of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities recognised. If, after assessment,
the Group’s interest in the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities exceeded the cost of the acquisition, the excess
was recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The minority interest in the acquiree was initially
measured at the minority interest’s proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of the assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses and is
presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Goodwill (continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually and whenever
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. Investment properties
include land held for undetermined future use, which is
regarded as held for capital appreciation purpose.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at their fair values using the fair value
model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment properties are included in profit or
loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in profit or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.
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68

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Properties held for development

Properties held for development for sale in the future are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs relating to the development of properties,
comprising prepaid lease payments for land and
development costs, are included in properties held for
development.

Properties, plant and equipment

Properties, plant and equipment (other than properties,
plant and equipment under construction) used in
the production of goods or supply of services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
properties, plant and equipment other than properties,
plant and equipment under construction over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their
estimated residual value, using the straight-line method
(see note 17 for the depreciation rates per annum of the
items of properties, plant and equipment).

Properties, plant and equipment under construction,
representing properties, plant and equipment in the
course of construction for production or for its own
use purposes, are carried at cost less any recognised
impairment loss. Properties, plant and equipment under
construction is classified to the appropriate category
of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 B #& R T M T

For the year ended 31 December 2010 # 2 —F—ZFF+ - A=+—HIFFEF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

An owner-occupied property is transferred to investment
property at fair value when there is a change in use, which
is evidenced by end of owner-occupation. The difference
between the fair value and the carrying amount at the
date of transfer is recognised in property revaluation
reserve in accordance with HKAS 16 “Property, plant and
equipment”. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the
asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred
directly to retained profits.

An item of properties, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of
the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Leasehold land and buildings under development for
future owner-occupied purpose

When the leasehold land and buildings are in the course
of development for production or for administrative
purposes, the leasehold land component is classified as a
prepaid lease payment and amortised over a straight-line
basis over the lease term. During the construction period,
the amortisation charge provided for the leasehold land is
included as part of costs of buildings under construction.
Buildings under construction are carried at cost, less any
identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when
they are in the location and condition necessary for them
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials
and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those
overheads that have been incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost
is calculated using the weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price less
all estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred
in marketing, selling and distribution.

Impairment losses on assets other than goodwill
(see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. If
the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Annual Report 2010 Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited
Z-ZHEFR EEBEERERERAR

B BRRME
FEFA=+—AILEE

oy

FESTER 2

_—

TFEERAS A ERFEMRMEP ZRESE
AR - KABREEYE R (WER) B
BINAREFEESERBAE KA AT
B Z BB o BRARIE #5055
& o R ERGEERER AT
ﬁ%ZiuBEXZSM&m%TEJ% CHERDH
1B FEAEZKA -

EEREBR(MERMNERTERD
BzastHR))

RIEREAERER  AEEBZMEBT
BEZEEE URTEEBTATRE
TREEERRRERBE - MEREME
S - R EEA IR SR - INEE
RMEBENEE(IE) < WMEXBREEZR
WEeRAHEREREE  RIZEEE
ZEEEEARBEE IR E SRR - RER
BRI R AR

i A& B O ERE - BREEZREE
AREHEBHEF 2R RE - HEE
2 BREE SR W B R & E X B P
EEEERTREBEMERE ZKE
18 » O 2R ERRARERRUA -

iRy
BRSSP REEEZ BRI D BB
R EIREETABEAR - ZEODRR
BMEML - MEEMENINBAKER
#) e
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 # 2 —F—ZFF+ - A=+—HIFFEF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Leasing (continued)

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter
into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction
of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line
basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element
as a finance or an operating lease separately based on
the assessment as to whether substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of each element
have been transferred to the Group. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is
accounted for as an operating lease is presented as
“prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement
of financial position and is amortised over the lease term
on a straight-line basis except for those that are classified
and accounted for as investment properties under the
fair value model. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building elements,
the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases,
in which case the entire lease is classified as an operating
lease.

FESHBER®E)

JzsRie S Janlich
REMK 2 HE WA TR BRI F 2 LA
BAVEEBBENER -

JezRI QL PETid
REHERENARENFHABREE
RBFX o AT LLEMOEC R EIRIE
REB 2N RRERERBRED 2 FH
ERAEFIRD o

AL I FIEF

EHEERIWEET  AEEFTEZE
HEREFHET2HEEEEETICS
HEEE D RBEROKKEERN - LH
2 REENEEFE(BREEMN—RIEE
MROEREHFGER - FRHESEEE
i - BT RS R FER LIS
fid o

MEFIRBES A S D Fly - ARSI BE
BEN MRS RERA MBI REP
FIRITANBEEFE]  HEREHEHEER
F# - D BRI AR FEEAIIER
BEMEERI - EHEFIATREMEL M
MEFEA S B - BIEEOR AR
B XESME - B R&REIK
Wt AR BESDRR I D BL RIAR QS A -

Annual Report 2010 Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited 71

T-TFFR BERERERERDA



/ §\'1 :

J |
\ g";
/i

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 B #& R T M T

For the year ended 31 December 2010 # 2 —F—ZFF+ - A=+—HIFFEF

72

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise, except for exchange differences arising
on a monetary item that forms part of the Company’s
net investment in a foreign operation, in which case,
such exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity and
will be reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal
of the foreign operation. Exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period except
for exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income,
in which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their
income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity (the translation reserve).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 B #& R T M T

For the year ended 31 December 2010 # 2 —F—ZFF+ - A=+—HIFFEF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

From 1 January 2010 onwards, on the disposal of a
foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s entire
interest in a foreign operation or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign
operation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange differences
arising are recognised in the translation reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sales, are added
to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
including state-managed pension schemes and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes are charged as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.
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74

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated income statement because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductable
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not be reversed in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. IE@iEE )

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period. The
measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position when
the group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into (i) financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), (ii)
loans and receivables and (i) available-for-sale financial
assets. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of each category of financial assets
are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments. The net gain or loss for
available-for-sale investments excludes any dividend or
interest earned.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL comprised financial
assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified as
held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

° it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 # 2 —F—ZFF+ - A=+—HIFFEF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables (including trade and other
receivables, bills receivables, amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries and bank balances and cash) are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses. (See
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets
below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets
at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period. Changes in fair
value are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in investment revaluation reserve, until
the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in investment revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss. (See accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured at cost less any
identified impairment losses at the end of the reporting
period subsequent to initial recognition. (See accounting
policy on impairment of financial assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include significant financial difficulty
of the issuer or counterparty; or breach of contract,
such as default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or it becomes probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or the
disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s
past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the credit period and observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate.

Annual Report 2010 Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited
Z-ZHEFR EEBEERERERAR

EMBHKMETE
—FE A=+ AULEE

FESHBERE)

SWMIR%E)

HEEERE

B EE (R ERAFEF ARSI
RBEHEERE AEFEEEFERE
PR - WHREBEE - DEMBEEED
FPHAREEZ —BXZEEMN  UKE
EMFARREREXIZE  AUKE
EDERIE

HRAHEENRAREMS - ZBEREN
AP EREREHREERERNERER
RBERNEBER

AMBEEMMEEENS  RENTERZE
BRI RRBETARRSH T HRERM
BREE : KT BEBITHRIERFEHARE K
REENTTR  JMEEANG AR EBRRE
SIS EAR ¢ Sk B R 3 8 B R B
BEEXREERTS

SLETHRANPBEE(WE S EUERR)
Ffﬁa R TEEBFLRENEES
REREE—GFRHERE - BEERFES
HERENEBEREEAEEBBELR
R HENBRBBREEEHRZRAK
28 LT H%iﬂ[%&ﬁﬁkﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ@
EHEIEMRITCREREE

R HERAHENMBEERNS - 88
FERRATEECHER - REFEE
PHEE P HER - W PAE E R BRI E B E
*%ﬁ%iﬁ%ﬁ’ﬁﬁﬁ(uﬁﬁxééﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁuﬁ
M R ) R 8RR
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEiHHE s

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
and other receivables are considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses were
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss
is recognised directly in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in investment revaluation reserve. For
available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses
are subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value
of the investment can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the recognition of impairment loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are
generally classified into financial liabilities at FVTPL and
other financial liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expenses is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
The Group’s financial liabilities at FVTPL comprise
financial liabilities held for trading. A financial liability is
classified as held for trading if:

o it has been incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near future; or

° it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising on remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any interest paid on the financial liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, bills payables, amounts due to fellow
subsidiaries and bank borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair values at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the
nature of the hedge relationship.

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
deemed as financial assets held for trading or financial
liabilities held for trading and are classified as current
assets or current liabilities.

Hedge accounting

The Group uses derivative financial instruments
(primarily interest rate swap contracts) to hedge its
exposure against changes in interest rate on bank
borrowings. At the inception of the hedging relationship
the Group documents the relationship between the
hedging instrument and hedged item, along with its risk
management objectives and its strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception
of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group
documents whether the hedging instrument that is used
in a hedging relationship is highly effective in offsetting
changes in cash flows of the hedged item.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Hedge accounting (continued)

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow
hedges are recognised in other comprehensive income.
The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as other gain or
losses.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity (hedging reserve)
are reclassified to profit or loss in the periods when the
hedged item is recognised in profit or loss.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group
revokes the hedging relationship, the hedging instrument
expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer
qualifies for hedge accounting. Any cumulative gain
or loss accumulated in equity at that time remains in
equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction
is ultimately recognised in profit or loss. When a forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or
loss accumulated in equity is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial
assets are transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset in
its entirely, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. IFES:BE®
(continued)
Share-based payment transactions DUBRBERARR S
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions HUBRGEXTHL S

Share options granted to directors and employees of the
Group

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at the
grant date is recognised as an expense in full at the grant
date when the share options granted vest immediately,
with a corresponding increase in the share option reserve.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to share option
reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in the share option
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the
share options are forfeited after vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts
receivables for goods sold and services provided in the
normal course of business, net of discounts, returns and
sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and title has passed.

Service income for drilling services is recognised when
services are provided.
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84

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably. Interest income from a financial asset is accrued
on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to
that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of the bank
borrowings, net of cash and cash equivalents, and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital, reserves and retained earnings as disclosed
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The Directors review the capital structure on a semi-
annual basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each
class of capital. In the opinion of the Directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-
backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption
of existing debt.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r & B 75 R M 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2010 # 2 —F—ZFF+ - A=+—HIFFEF

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5. ERMITA
5a. Categories of financial instruments 5a. S @I AEH
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FExT
Financial assets HEEE
Loans and receivables (including EFRMEWRZ(BFERS
cash and cash equivalents) kIReFEEE)
—trade and other receivables — B SR EAMEUERR 2,925,530 2,213,714
— bills receivables —EWEE 1,126,077 725,691
— amounts due from fellow — EUR[R R B A RIFE
subsidiaries 456,259 323,070
— bank balances and cash —R1ITEHBRIES 1,982,571 2,039,662
6,490,437 5,302,137
Available-for-sale investments Al HERE 730,751 403,748
Financial liabilities BigaE
FVTPL - Held for trading BIEEE B AT ETA
B 33,493 11,628
Derivative instruments in BAETHREHAE
designated hedge accounting PTETEA
relationships 9,838 32,971
Amortised cost BSHACR
— trade and other payables — B9 REAMERMIRER 977,663 676,827
- bills payables —ENRE 403,417 270,348
— amounts due to fellow —ENRIEWB R RZE
subsidiaries 28,012 20,040
— bank borrowings —R1ITEE 3,516,900 2,993,864
4,925,992 3,961,079
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5.

86

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

5b. Financial risk management objectives

and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade and other receivables, bills receivables, bank
balances and cash, available-for-sale investments,
amounts due from (to) fellow subsidiaries, trade
and other payables, bills payables and bank
borrowings. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk, interest rate risk and commodity
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk. Approximately 21%
(2009: 20%) of the Group’s sales are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency
of the relevant group entity making the sale,
whilst almost 39% (2009: 43%) of purchases are
denominated in currencies other than the group

entity’s functional currency.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
liabilities at the end of reporting period are
disclosed in respective notes. The management
continuously monitors the foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging foreign

currency risk should the need arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r & B 75 R M 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2010 # 2 —F—ZFF+ - A=+—HIFFEF

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5. &I A%
5b. Financial risk management objectives 5b. HMERKREEEERBEKR#E)
and policies (continued)
Market risk (continueqd) 5 e ()
Currency risk (continued) B (E)
Sensitivity analysis BBEZT

The Group is mainly exposed to fluctuation
against foreign currencies of United States
dollars, Japanese Yen and Hong Kong dollars.
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 10% (2009: 10%) increase and decrease
in RMB, the group entities’ functional currency,
against the relevant foreign currencies. 10% (2009:
10%) represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the
end of reporting period for a 10% (2009: 10%)
change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes trade and other receivables, bills
receivables, available-for-sale investments, bank
balances, trade and other payables, bills payable as
well as bank borrowings. A positive number below
indicates an increase in post-tax profit for the year

AEBREFEmMHET AERET
MINE R B EBR o T 2R At AN 5 @
HARE(EEEENIGEEE) R
AR IMNE FFBE10% (BT h 4
10%) EURE c 10%(ZZE TN,
F10%) RERBHINEREKS
BB - MREDTEIER
REEH ASNB D ER B IER -
HREHAREREFI0N(ZEE
EF - 10%) EBEH AR - B
RESTBREE S R EMmERE
o ERERE  THEHERE R
THEtR - BHREMBRRR - fE
NEBERRITEE - EHEEAR
S EEEEI0%(ZETN
F10%) B - AEERBEEF
BRETEM - 2 AR L BBEEB Y
10%(ZZFZNF : 10%) K - AJ 58
HAFERBIEHFERFERD

where RMB strengthen 10% (2009: 10%) against TE
the relevant currency. For a 10% (2009: 10%)
weakening of RMB against the relevant currency,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on
the post-tax profit for the year.
2010 2009
—B-FF —ETNEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET TR
United States Dollars s (109,093) (115,006)
Japanese Yen HIE| 7,180 2,919
Hong Kong Dollars BT 170,248 87,193
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5.

88

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

5b. Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to floating-rate bank borrowings
(see note 30 for details of these borrowings). In
relation to these floating-rate borrowings, the
Group aims at keeping certain proportion of its
borrowings at fixed rates. In order to achieve this
result, the Group may enter into interest rate swap
contracts to hedge against part of its exposure
to potential variability of cash flows arising from
changes in floating rate (see note 29 for details).
The management continuously monitors interest
rate fluctuation and will consider further hedging

interest rate risk should the need arise.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note. The Group’s
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly related to the
fluctuation of HIBOR arising from the Group’s

bank borrowings.

The Group’s bank balances have exposure to
cash flow interest rate risk due to the fluctuation
of the prevailing market interest rate on bank
balances. The Group is also exposed to fair value
interest rate risk relates primarily to its fixed-
rate short term bank deposits and unlisted bond
securities with fixed coupon interest. The Directors
consider the Group’s exposure of the short-term
bank deposits to interest rate risk is not significant
as interest bearing bank balances are within short
maturity period and fluctuation of savings interest

rates on bank balance is minimal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 B #& R T M T

For the year ended 31 December 2010 # 2 —F—ZFF+ - A=+—HIFFEF

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

5b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for interest bearing bank balances and bank
borrowings as well as interest rate swap contracts
at the end of the reporting period. The analysis
is prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis
points (2009: 50 basis points) increase or 10
basis points (2009: 10 basis points) decrease are
used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonable
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rate had been 50 basis points (2009: 50
basis points) higher and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s:

° post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2010 would decrease by
HK$13,969,000 (2009: decrease by
HK$6,123,000). This is mainly attributable
to the Group’s exposure to interest rates
on its variable-rate borrowings; and

o the debit side hedging reserve would
decrease by HK$1,967,000 (2009:
decrease by HK$15,128,000) mainly as
a result of the changes in the fair value of
interest rate swap contracts.

o investment revaluation reserve would
decrease by HK$25,422,000 mainly as a
result of the changes in the fair value of
available-for-sale unlisted bond securities
with fixed coupon interest.

5.

EMIE%)
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5.
Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If interest rate had been 10 basis points (2009:

10 basis points) lower and all other variables were

held constant, the Group’s:

5b.

post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2010 would increase by
HK$2,794,000 (2009: increase by
HK$1,225,000). This is mainly attributable
to the Group’s exposure to interest rates
on its variable-rate borrowings; and

the debit side hedging reserve would
increase by HK$393,000 (2009: increase
by HK$3,026,000) mainly as a result of the
changes in the fair value of interest rate
swap contracts.

investment revaluation reserve would
increase by HK$2,631,000 mainly as a
result of the changes in the fair value of
available-for-sale unlisted bond securities
with fixed coupon interests.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in listed equity securities.
The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risk profiles and the Group has a team to monitor
the price risk and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %44 B &3k = Mzt
For the year ended 31 December 2010 # & - F—FF+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

and policies (continued)

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5. LT H#E)
5b. Financial risk management objectives 5b. HKREKBEEEHERBER#E)

Market risk (continued) B e ()
Equity price risk (continued) BB RR ()
Sensitivity analysis BRBEZ Y (E)

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity price

TR BREDH - THIREHRE
8 R P A A B AR A i

risk at the end of the reporting period. T e

If the prices of the respective available-for-sale MR RERREREASEREZ
equity listed securities, which have been impaired AEHERKN EH ﬁﬁZ{ftﬂi-jJu
at the end of the reporting period, had been 10% 10%

higher:

o post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2009 would increase by
approximately HK$36,145,000 (2010: nil) as
a result of the change in fair value of these

. HE-_ZZAF+ A
—t+—BUIFEzBRE %R
R 8 N4936,145,00078 7T
(ZZ2—ZF : &) RAA

available-for-sale investments; and ZEARNERERTER
R
o no change in investment revaluation ° HE—T-TER-TTN
reserve for the years ended 31 December Ft- ﬂ = E“tiﬁ Z
"B Bk I

2010 and 31 December 2009 would be
resulted.

There would be an equal and opposite effect
on post-tax profit for the year if the prices of the
respective available-for-sale equity listed securities,
which have been impaired, had been 10% lower.

fisi % B E A H B AR LT RE
HERR TE10% @ AIBEHAFE i
BigaMAERFHROZE -

If the prices of the respective available-for-sale 1ﬁgﬁiﬁiiﬁﬁﬁaﬁﬁ+;aﬂx,}ﬂ%z
equity listed securities, which have not been E”é\”_uj ERA LS 2 EisEmM
impaired at the end of the reporting period, had 10%
been 10% higher:

. —EEFTA=1—

° investment revaluation reserve at 31
December 2010 would increase by
approximately HK$14,668,000 (2009:
increase by approximately HK$2,250,000)
as a result of the change in fair value of
these available-for-sale investments; and

o no change in post-tax profit for the
years ended 31 December 2010 and 31
December 2009 would be resulted.

There would be an equal and opposite effect on
investment revaluation reserve if the prices of the
respective available-for-sale equity listed securities,
which have not been impaired, had been 10%
lower.

A E S EEBIEM
414,668,000/ T(Z 2 Z
L ¢ 12 1%92,250,0007%8
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

5b. Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)
Commodity price risk

The Group was exposed to commodity price
risk from the outstanding commodity forward
contracts at the end of the reporting period. The
management consider that the price risks of these
derivative instruments are not significant to the

Group.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
the event of the counterparties’ failure to perform
their obligations at the end of the reporting period
in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
board of directors has delegated the management
to be responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the Directors
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly

reduced.

The credit risk in relation to bank deposits and
bank balances is considered minimal as such
amounts are placed with banks with good credit

ratings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 44

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

5b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk on trade and other receivables, with
exposure spread over a number of counterparties
and customers other than group entities. However,
the Group is exposed to the concentration on
geographic and industry segment of the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and laminate
industry, respectively. At 31 December 2010,
approximately 92% (2009: 92%) of the Group’s
trade and other receivables are arising from
the PRC and all are from the laminates industry
segment.

Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries are
concentrated on a few counterparties. However,
the credit risk on amount due from fellow
subsidiaries is limited because of the strong
financial background of the fellow subsidiaries.

At 31 December 2009, the Group has
concentration risk on its available-for-sale
investments with 89.5% of the total available-for-
sale investments concentrated in a single financial
institution which is listed in the United States. At
31 December 2010, the Group has concentration
risk on its available-for-sale investments with
55.2% of the total available-for-sale investments
concentrated in three unlisted bond securities
issued by two listed issuers in Hong Kong. The
Group’s available-for-sale unlisted bond securities
are exposed to credit risk due to the default of
repayment by the bond issuers. However, the
Directors considered that the credit risk on these
investments are limited as the unlisted bonds were
secured by certain assets of the issuers and issued
by issuers in Hong Kong with strong financial
background and assigned with high credit ratings
by international credit rating agencies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 # & —F—FF+ - H=+—HIF FZ

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation
of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with
loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a
significant source of liquidity. At 31 December
2010, the Group has available unutilised
bank borrowing facilities of approximately
HK$6,490,508,000 (2009: HK$4,920,257,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The maturity dates for other
non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the
agreed repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are
floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived
from interest rate curve at the end of the reporting
period.

In addition, the following table details the Group’s
liquidity analysis for its derivative financial
instruments. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted contractual net cash
(inflows) and outflows on derivative instruments
that settle on a net basis. The liquidity analysis for
the Group’s derivative financial instruments are
prepared based on the contractual maturities as
the management consider that the contractual
maturities are essential for an understanding of the
timing of the cash flows of derivatives.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5. &I A%
5b. Financial risk management objectives 5b. HMEREKREEEERBER#Z
and policies (continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r & B iRk KMzt
For the year ended 31 December 2010 # 2 —F—ZFF+ - A=+—HIFFEF

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5. eI A&
5b. Financial risk management objectives 5b. HKEREEBEEERBEKRE)
and policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) BB LR (E)
Liquidity and interest risk tables MEE S RFEE K
Weighted Over Over Over
average  Ondemand 3 months 1 year 2years Total

effectie  orlessthan butnotmore butnotmore butnotmore undiscounted Carrying
interestrate ~ 3months  than1year than2years than5years  cashflows amount

&Y #ERd  Z@ANL —EHE MENL EZiE)
RBA= ZfiAk BTEE-F BTEERF ETEELF RERELE KEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TR Tin TR Tin Tén

At31 December 2010 REZ-FE+2A=+-8
Non-dervative fnanciallabilties HITEIRER
Trads and other payables EARAMBERER - 977,663 - - - 977,663 977,663
Bils payeles e - 403417 - - - 403417 403417
Amounts due to fellow subsidiares B[R ZHBLAZE - 28,012 - - - 28,012 28,012
Bank borrowings - variable rate REE-28 0.82 471318 1,216,152 213,355 1,213,387 2,810,212 2,624,592
Bank borrowings - variable rate hedged ST E - 78 HFIEIE

by interest rate swap contracts Al 082 121,060 718,565 - - 899,625 892,308

1,577,470 1,994,717 213,355 1,213,387 5,118,929 4,925,992

Derivatives - net settlement (4 TA-BEF8
Commodity forward contracts BRESAY - 20,429 8,499 - - 31,928 33,493
Interest rate swap contracts HzEman - 1,840 8,245 - - 10,085 9,838

31,269 16,744 - - 48,013 43,331

Annual Report 2010 Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited 95
—Z-THER BEBEERERERAR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 B 7% 3R R fiZE
For the year ended 31 December 2010 # 2 —E—FF+ - HA=+—HIFFE

5.

96

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5. EMIT R
5b. Financial risk management objectives 5b. HIEEKEEBENBEZ)
and policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) TEBE LA (E)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued) MEE S RNERERE(E)
Weighted Over Over QOver
average On demand 3months 1 year 2 years Total
effective orlessthan  butnotmore  butmotmore  butnotmore  undiscounted Camying
interest rate 3months  thantyear than2years  thanSyears  cashflows amount
ETS BERE ZEANE  -ENE O BELE EZ e
(kS =@AAR EFRE-§ BTEERF BTEELF RERSLE B
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
TiEn FiEn T FET Tin T
At31 December 2009 R-ZEAEFT2A=1-A
Non-derivetive financial liabilties HitaREE
Trade and other payables B RAMEMNES - 412,301 264,526 - - 676,827 676,827
Bills payables EfEE - 270,348 - - - 270,348 210,348
Amounts due to felow subsideries — FERFZMELAZUE - 20040 - - - 20,040 20,040
Bank borrowings - variable rate HiTEE-28 1.90 324511 132,459 1,129,736 433,447 2,020,218 1,840,018
Bank borrowings - variable rate hedged  $/T(E - 78 WFIRIES
by interest rate swap contracts Al 1.90 137,308 476,538 627,577 - 1,241,423 1,153,846
1,164,574 873,523 1,757,312 433,447 4,228,856 3,961,079
Derivatives - net settlement (4 TA-BEF8
Commodty forward contracts BRESAN - 12,597 - - - 12,597 11,628
Interest rate swap contracts MNEZHAY - 233 8,847 25,206 - 34,306 32,071
12,830 8847 25,2206 - 46,903 44599
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %44 B &3k = Mzt
For the year ended 31 December 2010 # & - F—FF+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

the fair value of financial assets and
financial liabilities with standard terms and
conditions and traded on active liquid
markets are determined with reference to
quoted market bid prices and ask prices
respectively;

° the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities (including derivative
instruments) is determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis
and relevant pricing models using prices
or rates from observable current market
transactions and dealer quotes for similar
instruments as input;

° the fair value of available-for-sale unlisted
bond securities is determined based on
valuation techniques using inputs that can
be observed in the market in addition to
unobservable inputs such as credit rating
assigned to the bonds.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5. SRTHEE)
5c. Fair value 5c. 2¥E

BB EERIBAE 2 RFERIA

TREEE

. AR AR RE
BEmSERE CMKEEE
rEBaBz A FED RIS
Emisimc ERENER
BEE

. RIBARZEERRN - 4
RS RENNT - EEEM
MBEENYBRE(RRE
TETR)ZAFE 718
ReRENH MAAEEEE
NERBEMERXFEELZ
ERFFERRBEUTAENK
SEREERER

o FIBSERTG SATSLE
AR BE RESERY
EEARETTBRZE
B EEAR S hE
5EH Y ATHE -

EERA - NBIERARRERGS
FBmR M BEERMBTABZ
FREEEEQAFERE -

Annual Report 2010 Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited 97

THEFH BEEERERERAE



/ §\'1 :
S e’

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %44 B &3k = Mzt
For the year ended 31 December 2010 # & - F—FF+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5. S®RIAw®
5c. Fair value (continued) 5c. ’D\${E

Fair value measurements recognised in the KRG A BB ER S N FE
consolidated statement of financial position =
The following table provides an analysis of financial TRIBHEZ A FEEVSHERE
instruments that are measured subsequent to HFEZERMIAZHON  BEXR
initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels Sz A FESERE—REE=

1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is # o
observable.
o Level 1 fair value measurements are those . F— AAREESAR

derived from quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active market for identical assets or
liabilities.

Level 2 fair value measurements are those
derived from inputs other than quoted
prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices).

Level 3 fair value measurements are those
derived from valuation techniques that
include inputs for the assets or liabilities
that are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs).

EEAT SRR
FSATENE -

FEHR - REBET A
B NEEHRABERE
(BMEFR) s (B B E1S
P18 ) AR AT B IR B P
BZAVHEE -

E=18 - FIMMERI - £
R ARIER AR D5 8
2 B (R AT B 2 78 )
EEMAENARE - GHA
FiEiE -

At 31 December 2010
R-E-ZF+-A=1+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—8 k| E=4 a5
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TER TER TEr TER
Available-for-sale financial At EMTEEE
assets
Listed equity securities tﬁﬂxﬁs' 5 146,677 - - 146,677
Unlisted bond securities FEMESES - - 403,191 403,191
Financial liabilities at FVTPL R AFE ABEZ
HKaE
Derivative financial fTESRMTA
instruments - 33,493 - 33,493
Derivative instruments ~ MFAIETH T E:HE
in designated B2ITHET R
hedge accounting
relationships - 9,838 - 9,838
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %44 B &3k = Mzt
For the year ended 31 December 2010 &t & —E—F4&+ = H=+—H I FEZF

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5. EMIB#E)
5c. Fair value (continued) 5c. RV¥E#E)
Fair value measurements recognised in the WER & B AR S R 2 2 F 1B
consolidated statement of financial position FTE(4)
(continued)

At 31 December 2009
RZZEENE+=A=1—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—H8 F-H F=H Al
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET BT FET FET
Available-for-sale financial ~ AJft HEMEEE
assets
Listed equity securiies iR ARES 383,948 - - 383,948
Financial liabilities at FVTPL R AFE ABHZ
HKaE
Derivative financial fTEEBTA
instruments - 11,628 - 11,628
Derivative instruments ~ MFAIETHME:HE
in designated BZITET A
hedge accounting
relationships - 32,971 - 32,971
There were no transfers between level 1 and 2 in AKEERNEFE  F—8BKE
the current and prior years. 2 EEE Tﬂﬁﬁé
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of EZBUBEEENFEGTEZ S
financial assets 3
Unlisted bond
securities
FLEHERES
HK$’000
FHET
At 1 January 2010 RZZE—ZF—HF—H =
Purchases BE 406,664
Total losses in other comprehensive  E.fth 2 WS~ BB 42 %E
income (3,473)
At 31 December 2010 N_E—FTF+_-_A=+—H 403,191
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r & B #5R R M 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2010 # 2 —F—ZFF+ - A=+—HIFFEF

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5.

5c¢. Fair value (continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of

financial assets (continued)

Included in other comprehensive income is an
amount of HK$3,473,000 loss relate to unlisted
bond securities held at the end of the reporting
period and is reported as changes of investment
revaluation reserve for the year ended 31

December 2010.

6. REVENUE

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable
by the Group from the sales of goods and drilling services
provided to outside customers, net of discounts, returns

SMIAW

5¢c. VE®#E)
BB BEEENFlEGTEZH
(R

RREHEREBFEZIELT
E5/E5183,473,000/8 7T * 2B
HEREMEEmKSUEREER

A -

LR

BXRBEARBRAHINEFHEEMR
R FLARFE AT U M B U B - AT
RENMABHEERRROFE - SF0O0

and sales related taxes. Analysis for each year is as T -
follows:
2010 2009
—z-%% —“EThE
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Sales of: HE -
Glass epoxy laminates IREWIB AR IR E R 7,492,013 4,737,268
Paper laminates HBE R 2,886,769 2,437,934
Upstream materials Lkt 2,068,056 1,141,535
Others Hib 608,367 754,246
13,055,205 9,070,983
Sales of laminates includes sales of glass epoxy laminates ERERNEEREREGEPEEEXRY

and paper laminates manufactured according to
specifications required by customers. Sales of upstream
materials includes sale of copper foil, epoxy resin,
glass fabric and bleached kraft paper. Others comprise
drilling service which involves the drilling of holes into the
laminates required by customers and sales of specialty

resin and other materials.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r & B 75 R M 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2010 # 2 —F—ZFF+ - A=+—HIFFEF

OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group’s operating and reportable segment have been
identified on the basis of internal management reports
prepared in accordance with accounting policies conform
to HKFRSs, that are regularly reviewed by the executive
directors of the Company, being the chief operating
decision maker of the Group, in order to allocate
resources to segments and to assess their performances.

The executive directors regularly review revenue and
overall operating result derived from sale of goods and
provision of drilling services on an aggregated basis and
consider them as one single operating segment (see note
6 for revenue analysis for major products and services).

Other segment information

The Group principally operates in the PRC (other than
Hong Kong) (country of domicile) with revenue and
profits derived mainly from its operations in the PRC. A
geographical analysis of non-current assets other than
financial instruments and deferred tax assets are not
presented as they are substantially located in the PRC.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from
external customers by geographical location:

SENEED MR BWREHREAY
RIREAM S BRAREL B ARN
TERNEETIZLERRELDAMEER
R BN ERIR _EFTE REM A A ED
WEERELE -

BITEEUATRRREETHEMEE
EmhREHELRBNERELERLS
EEAUBR 2 RE—LENE - (RKE6H
FREMMREEREIN)

Hip o &R
AEBMEIZEBRUNTE(TREEE)
(REBEZFrE) - EXRBRENEEE
KERBEER - AR AEBEARE D IERE
EEMEESRIAREENIREE) M
RARE - R 2 R E AT o

RIBINBE PR KE D 2 REEE
BAONTEBET

2010 2009

—E-ZF ZETNEF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

TET FHET

PRC (country of domicile) B (AN B 2 FiTEit) 12,189,695 8,356,492
Other foreign countries: HsMoERK

Other Asian countries VTR 677,683 588,559

Europe B 112,266 70,256

America E 75,561 55,676

13,055,205 9,070,983

Revenue from one of the Group’s customers amounting
to HK$2,591,093,000 (2009: HK$2,101,289,000), which
individually accounted for over 10% of the Group’s
revenue for the year.

REEBER KPP EXELME
7 2,591,093,000 # ;T ( = T T L F -
2,101,289,000/8 7T) - 16 & B A & K5
B10% o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r & B iRk R M1zt

For the year ended 31 December 2010 # 2 —F—ZFF+ - A=+—HIFFE

8. OTHER INCOME 8. Ha A
2010 2009
—E-ZF “TENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Other income comprises: Ha AB3E

Rental income HaWA 13,192 11,616

Gain on fair value changes of BEMELTFEEE M
investment properties 7,550 9,095
Interest income FEWA 18,230 18,223
Net exchange gain B 5 e FEE 13,197 11,023
Others Hih 16,548 6,617
68,717 56,574

9. IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON AVAILABLE-FOR- 9.
SALE INVESTMENTS
During the year ended 31 December 2009, impairment
loss on available-for-sale investments of HK$156,367,000
(2010: Nil) was recognised as a result of significant or
prolonged decline in the fair values of certain of the
Group’s listed equity investments below their costs.

AHEEREZRERER

REE-_ZZNF+_-_A=+T—"BILFE
A ARAEBERENET EHRAERE
MAFEEZENRBEREKRAE  Eit
RIS AT B IR E 2 BEE18156,367,000
BIL(ZE—ZF 1 8F) -

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. EEKA
2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Interest on bank borrowings wholly ARAFANEEERIEIT
repayable within five years BEZFE 43,347 30,232
Release of hedging reserve RS 2 BEl 29,650 28,709
72,997 58,941
Less: Amounts capitalised in the cost ~ J& : BAL BABIREERK
of qualifying assets REFIA (7,752) (3,464)
65,245 55,477

The weighted average capitalisation rate on funds
borrowed generally is 2.2% per annum (2009: 0.8% per
annum).

1 02 Annual Report 2010 Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited
T-TEFR BERERERERDE

FrfEEcBBMEFHERNMERAERF
22%(ZZZNF : FFIE0.8%) °



\ s .
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & B 75 R &R M 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2010 # 2 —F—ZFF+ - A=+—HIFFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. FBFHiMx
2010 2009
—E-EF ZZTNEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTEx FHIT
The amount comprises: HEeE:
Hong Kong Profits Tax BN
Underprovision in previous years BEFEREBTR 2,313 -
Taxation arising in the PRC HEl 2 IR
Charge for the year REERIBZ 268,427 129,959
Overprovision in previous years BITFEHEERE - (2,053)
268,427 127,906
Deferred taxation EAETIIE
(Credit) charge for the year (note 22) REF(BERE)ZH
(PBF3E22) (957) 211
269,783 128,117
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the BEBENEH IR ER AN LA16.5%
estimated assessable profit. ZIREETH o
Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on BR(PEAREMBECEMGSH L)
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation ([REMBBE]D REEMSTAER
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC Bl PEEME R R B 5525% °

subsidiaries is 25%.

Annual Report 2010 Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited 1 03
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r & B #5R R M 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2010 # 2 —F—ZFF+ - A=+—HIFFEF

11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 11.
Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit before

taxation as follows:

Fr8BIB ()
AFE 2 BUARBRBADE N 2 HIRAT

2010 2009
—z-%5 —TTNE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET THBT
Profit before taxation BRI 2,636,467 1,793,940
Tax charge at the domestic income LAE HIFT1S 11 2 25%
tax rate of 25% (2009: 25%) (note a) —ZETNEF  25%)
ATEZBIEX (i Ea) 659,117 448,485
Tax effect of expenses not deductible  FAER A 5 A~ A 135 & A
for tax purpose R E 5,948 52,708
Tax effect of income not taxable for FEIEN T B ARBUA
tax purpose R E (56,014) (10,977)
Under(over)provision in previous years  iBFFEEETE
(FBEERE) 2,313 (2,053)
Tax effect of Tax Holiday (note b) BRE B 2 (M Fb) (52,211) (97,092)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised  AHERRIBE IR 2 Fi £ 5,168 8,581
Utilisation of tax losses previously B SRR FERR R IR 18
not recognised (1,720) (9,255)
Effect of different tax rates of REA AR,
subsidiaries operating in BB AR
other jurisdictions/areas Z TR E & (20,732) (32,649
Effect of tax exempted profit (note ¢)  EAREF G H| 2 &
(FifEe) (272,086) (229,631)
Tax expense for the year REE 2B 269,783 128,117

Notes: B & -

(@) The domestic income tax rate of 25% (2009: 25%) represents (@ B FTERE25%(Z ST NE : 25%) &
the PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate of which the Group’s REEKRID EHAEH R 2 PEBEMEH
operations are substantially based. *o

(o) Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, certain (b) RAERBIER AR ELER - AR FIE THEH
subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC are exempted from PRC BAE B B ARG (AR R a4
Enterprise Income Tax for two years starting from the first profit- ZBIBER) AR E AR RSN T Bk %
making year in which profits exceed any carried forward tax Fisii » B2 = F 5T 2R 2£50% ([ %
losses followed by a 50% reduction in the income tax rate in the HED) - ZEMBRATZHZRBEBEN -2
following three years (“Tax Holiday”). The Tax Holiday enjoyed by —ZEFSRZFIEW
these subsidiaries will expire on or before 2012.

(©) Profits arising from certain subsidiaries of the Company in area (© ARARNIRIERE R EBIE 2 & THEBLAR

other than PRC and HK are exempted from profits tax.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r & B 75 R M 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2010 # 2 —F—ZFF+ - A=+—HIFFEF

12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 12. REERF
2010 2009
—E-EF —TTNEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET T
Profit for the year has been arrived at N[5 F| 2 &0
after charging (crediting): GTA)ATIESR -
Depreciation of properties, plantand 1% - liE RRETE
equipment 751,938 774,880
Release of prepaid lease payments B E FIEE 7,180 7,061
759,118 781,941
Net exchange gain b 5 e 558
—included in cost of sales —FPAHEKE (16,501) (10,221)
—included in other income —EPAEMBA (13,197) (11,023)
(29,698) (21,244)
Auditor’s remuneration ZERI & 3,000 3,000
Cost of inventories sold BEEFE KA 9,763,071 6,370,943
Impairment loss recognised on trade 3t 5 & H At FE W BE SR HERR
and other receivables (see note 25) 2 EEE (RHFE25) 2,452 48,585
Loss on fair value change of A RSN AT EEE
commodity forward contracts Z BB GTAEERR)
(included in cost of sales) 33,493 11,628
Loss on disposal and write off of HERMEDE  BE
properties, plant and equipment Nk EiE 1,319 3,874
Total staff costs, including directors’ BIALAE
emoluments (see note 13) PREEZMNE (RM13) 415,044 300,916
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r & B iRk R M1zt

For the year ended 31 December 2010 # 2 —F—ZFF+ - A=+—HIFFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 13.
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments
The emoluments paid or payable were as follows:

EEREEMS
(@) EEME

ENSEMNZMEIT

2010 2009

—E-EF —TTNF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx FHIT

Salaries and other benefits e NHMER 13,992 11,558

Contributions to retirement R FIRT IR

benefits scheme 583 493
Performance related incentive T {EXIE #£E) A (M)

payment (Note) 68,700 52,250

Total emoluments < &858 83,275 64,301

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the
Directors were as follows:

ENRENSEZZMENT

Year ended 31 December 2010
BE-S-BET-AST-ALSE

Cheung ~ Cheung  Cheung Lam  Cheung Chan Zhou Lo Chan Chan  Leung Mok
Kwok Kwok Kwok Ka Ka Sau Liu Pei Ka  Chamwut Yue Kwong, Tai YiuKeung,
Wa  Keung Ping Po Ho Chi Min Feng Leong  Bemard  Michael Chiu Peter Total
FEE  RER  REY  MFR FER RRE 8 BSE  BIR RER  RE:X  REE  2ER Gl
HKS000  HKS000 HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000 HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
TR TEn  TEr  TEn TEn TR TEn  TEr  TRn  TEn T TEn  TEr  TER
Fees ok - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Other emoluments: EHe -
Salaries and other bengfits FEREMER 2316 2416 2,218 2128 95 802 648 619 1,080 180 180 180 180 13092
Contrbutons toretfement ~ RAKERE B
benefts scheme 107 100 106 % a 38 2 27 36 - - - - 583
Performance related TiEFREDE
ncentive payment (Note) (M) 18000 14000 14000 14000 4,000 2,500 1,100 1,100 - - - - - 68700
Totel emoluments Hews 20423 16516 16384 16221 5082 3,340 1,117 1,746 1,116 180 180 180 180 83215

1 06 Annual Report 2010 Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %44 B &3k = MizE
For the year ended 31 December 2010 # 2 —E—FF+ - HA=1+—HIFF/E

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 13. EEREEME @)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(@) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (@ EEME#E)
Year ended 31 December 2009
HE-TENETCAST-AILER
Cheung  Cheung  Cheung lam  Cheung Chan Zhou Lo Chan Chan Leung Mok
Kwok Kwok Kwok Ka Ka Sau Ly Pei Ka  Chamwut YueKiwong, Ta YiuKeung,
Wa Keung Ping Po Ho Chi Min Feng leong  Bemard  Michael Chiu Peter Total
FE R RET  MFE RRR RAR By BEE Bxz RER Rt BB RE Gl
HKS000  HKS000  HKSO0D  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$O000
TRt Thn TAr TR ThAr  TRr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEn  TEr  TEn  TEr  TEn
Fees Bg - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Other emoluments: g :
Salaries and other benefts EeREMER 2,064 1,850 1,855 1,690 688 628 538 510 1,125 180 180 180 180 11,558
Controufions toretrement ~ RICETIEHE 3
beneffts scheme 9 8 89 6 B Kil % ) kil - - - - 493
Perfomance related TiERRRETE
incentive payment (Note) (hist) 11,600 11,600 11,500 11,500 222 2225 900 900 - - - - - 52250
Total emoluments jiEaetd 13,653 13433 13444 13,166 2946 2,883 1,462 1433 1,161 180 180 180 180 64,301

No directors waived any emoluments in the years HE-Z—ZTF+-_A=+—AHK

ended 31 December 2010 and 31 December ZEENFF+ZA=+—HLF

20009. B BEEERELAE -

Note:  The performance related incentive payment is fiEE s ITERBERZIBNSEMEFE
determined with reference to the operating results, ZISERE  AARBRIEEMS
individual performance and comparable market BIRET -
statistics during both years.

(b) Employees’ emoluments (b) EEMS

For the years ended 31 December 2009 and
31 December 2010, all of the five highest paid
employees are directors.

During both years, no emoluments were received
or receivable by the Directors or the Group’s five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.

HE_ZTZNF+-_A=+—H8K
ZE—TFF+ZA=FT—HLF
T 2Rt eEEHAE
=

REEFER  EFHAKERA
RR#He A THED Kk R ER
e - ERRSIRSMBARERRK
ANE 7SR [BIR 32 5 2 SR X 1 A
Bz mfE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r & B #5R R M 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2010 # 2 —F—ZFF+ - A=+—HIFFEF

14. DIVIDENDS 14. RKRE
2010 2009
—E-2F —TTNEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Dividends paid: EIREHIBE -
Interim dividend for 2010 of HK16 —T-TFEPHRE
cents (2009: HK10 cents) per BT BER16HE(L
ordinary share (ZZZh - 1051L) 480,000 300,000
Final dividend for 2009 of HK18 “ETNFRERE
cents (2008: HK10 cents) per FARE MR8
ordinary share ZETN 1081) 540,000 300,000
1,020,000 600,000
Dividend proposed: EERE
Proposed final dividend of HK18 BEAHRE
cents (2009: HK18 cents) per FAE MR8
ordinary share (ZZEZTNF - 18/8(l) 540,000 540,000
The final dividend of HK18 cents per ordinary share in EZQRAREHRE_Z-ZF+_A
respect of the year ended 31 December 2010 (2009: final =+ —BIEFERPKREFRLMAR187E
dividend of HK18 cents per ordinary share in respect of W(ZZEZhF: BEZZZTNF+A
the year ended 31 December 2009) has been proposed =t+—HBIEFERPAKRETRKR L RER18E
by the Directors and is subject to the approval by the W) - MR TR A FE E AR R B K
shareholders of the Company in the forthcoming annual GHOE - FOIEE -

general meeting.

1 08 Annual Report 2010 Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r & B iRk KMzt
For the year ended 31 December 2010 # 2 —F—ZFF+ - A=+—HIFFEF

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE

15.

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable

BREF

ARBFBEARIESRERRNIZ TSI

to the owners of the Company is based on the following e
data:
2010 2009
—E-2F —TTNEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Earnings for the purpose of calculating st E&IREREF 2 ZF
basic earnings per share 2,280,380 1,648,031
Number of shares
RBEE
2010 2009
—E-2F —TTNEF
’000 ’000
+ +
Number of ordinary shares for the SFEFREARZEF]
purpose of calculating basic - G
earnings per share 3,000,000 3,000,000

No diluted earnings per share has been presented as the
Company does not have any potential ordinary shares.

MRARR R ELBEEERE LR
B Bt B2 EREEERR -

Annual Report 2010 Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited 1 09
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r & B 75 R MiEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010 # 2 —F—ZFF+ - A=+—HIFFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

16. REYXE

HK$’000
T
FAIR VALUE A
At 1 January 2009 RZZEZTNFE—H—H 42,005
Transfer from properties, plant and HRE B BEREE(WE17)
equipment (note 17) 5,773
Increase in fair value AN 9,095
At 31 December 2009 RZEENF+=ZA=+—H 56,873
Exchange adjustments M 5 S8 B 1,701
Transfer from properties, plant and EERAYE BB REE(WEE17)
equipment (note 17) 9,500
Increase in fair value NFEEM 7,550
At 31 December 2010 RZZE—ZTF+_HA=+—H 75,624

RE-F-FF+-A=+-ALEE
KUEEABBAYE  HERREZY
2 DA TR S L B 2 B
BA B EMEREHETARA AR
HABITHEL B -

The fair value of the properties transferred from properties,
plant and equipment at the date of transfer for the year
ended 31 December 2010 had been arrived at on the
basis of a valuation carried out on that date by Memfus
Wong Surveyors Limited, independent qualified valuers
not connected with the Group.

RZF-FF+_A=1+—0 FEEK
BEMEZRHETIREA KRBT EEEZ
BYABRMGEMERZRGEITZAE
TEZEEEZS - ERERFITER
RAIRBBNEMBEEE - TRMEET
2ERUNEZHEBEI TS BEETE -

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at
31 December 2010 had been arrived at on the basis of
a valuation carried out on that date by Memfus Wong
Surveyors Limited, independent qualified valuers not
connected with the Group. Memfus Wong Surveyors
Limited are members of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors. The valuation was arrived at by reference
to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties.

11 O Annual Report 2010 Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 B #& R T MI=E

For the year ended 31 December 2010 # 2 —F—ZFF+ - A=+—HIFFE

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at
31 December 2009 had been arrived at on the basis
of a valuation carried out on that date by Messrs. BMI
Appraisals Limited, independent qualified valuers not
connected with the Group. Messrs. BMI Appraisals
Limited are members of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors. The valuation was arrived at by reference
to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
are measured using the fair value model and are classified
and accounted for as investment properties.

16.

BEY= )

AEBREMER-TENAF+ A
=+ —AZATETREAREEL &S
2B ABREERR BRI EERA
AR % BT A2 ERER - RS
HEERATATEIEMEGEE - 2
RIEETLERLNERHEEZ TS

S s
AEEAE °

AEERRNESHEAEELRELS
MOFAEZFEMERES - BFRRAY
ERNGE - YDBERIMEREYE -

The carrying value of investment properties shown above A BT E AT
comprises:
2010 2009
—E-2F ZETHhEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHBIT
Property interests situated in Hong BTN EERE
Kong under: ZWFEREE
Medium-term lease H BRAEAY 19,650 5,600
Property interests situated outside T TIENREBAINEE
Hong Kong under: 2R
Medium-term lease R AR Y 24,174 20,473
Long lease RERAY 31,800 30,800
55,974 51,273
75,624 56,873
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 & & —ZF—

FEf A=t —AULFE

SMBHKMETE

17. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. 9% BERZE
Properties,
Furniture, plant and
Buildings fixtures equipment
for Leasehold Plant and and Motor under
ownuse  improvements machinery equipment vehicles  construction Total
b fi - £E i3
BREF VEE BER#E e ] AE RERZ A G
HK$1000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$1000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000
Thn Thn TEn Thn Thr TEn T#n
00sT KA
At1 January 2009 RZZENF-A-H 918,852 2,557 7,558,559 188,151 57211 585,991 9,311,321
Bxchange adjustments EREE 1,368 - 11,315 308 83 689 13763
Disposal of asubsiciary (rote 35)  (HE BRI (H39) - - (16,230 (905) - (56) (17,191)
Addtions HE 15 - 99,123 18,613 1,668 183,641 303,160
Disposals and write off HERHH - - (118,351) (1,169) (2.359) ) (121884)
Transferred to investment properties S8BT HEYZ (HizHe)
(note 16) (6,077) - - - - - (6,077)
Reclassications Exipd 51,768 - 357,79 78,806 - (488,369) -
At 31 December 2009 RZBENETZA=1-H 966,026 2,557 7,892,211 283,804 56,604 281,890 9,483,092
Exchange adjustments EREE 31,79 88 261,11 9,133 1,873 7198 301,802
Acquiston of a subsictary - E AR ()

(note 34) - - 249 - - - 249
Additions RE - - 131,927 22,942 2,639 5712972 730,480
Disposals and write off HE RS 209) - (145,845) (23,169) 3,169 (1,808) (174,194)
Transferred to investment properties & ZR AL (Fi16)

[note 16) (4961) - - - - - (4961)
Transferred to fellow subsiolaries EETRZNBAA - - - (66,938) - - (66,938)
Redlassfications Exipy 61,684 - 18,861 38430 - (118,975) -
At 31 December 2010 RE-SE+-A=1-8 1,054,339 2,645 8,149,114 264,202 57,953 .21 10,269,530
DEPRECIATION AND MPARMENT ~ #E RisifE
At1 January 2009 RZZENF-A-H 220,441 2,165 3,064,633 76,244 38,022 - 3,403,505
Exchange adjustments Ej A% 320 - 4372 132 56 - 4,880
Provided for the year TERARE 51,923 165 669,251 47,985 5,55 - 774,880
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 35) ~ HE—FIHE R ([F5535) - - (4,608) (354) - - 4.957)
Transferred to investment properties  EBZREY£ (HizH6)

[note 16) (304) - - - - - (304)
Eliminated on disposals and write off &5+ 8 R - - (39,904) (1,083) (2,027) - (42.994)
At 31 December 2009 RETENETZA=1-8 274,380 2330 3,693,749 122,044 41,607 - 4135010
Bxchange adjustments ERHE 7,152 16 123213 4591 1410 - 136,382
Provided for the year TEERE 31,557 165 660945 53,748 5523 - 751938
Transferred to investment properties  EAZR AL (H1516)

[note 16) (2.729) - - - - - (2,729)
Transferred to felow subsidiaries ~ BREFZKEAT - - - (59,987) - - (59,987)
Eiiminated on disposals and wrte off  (HEBST RS 81) - (95,006) (19.074) 2.748) - (116,909
At 31 December 2010 RZE-FF+=F=1-8 310,279 2,51 4,382,901 102,222 45,792 - 4,843,705
CARRYING VALUE SHfE
At 31 December 2010 RZZ-FF+-F=1-H 744,060 134 3,766,213 161,980 12,161 2n 5,425,825
At 31 December 2009 RZZENFTZA=+-H 691,646 21 4,198,462 160,860 14,997 281,890 5,348,082
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 B #& R T M T

For the year ended 31 December 2010 # 2 —F—ZFF+ - A=+—HIFFEF

17.

18.

PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group
changed the use of certain of its properties and rented
them out to independent third parties for rental income.
When there was a change in use, upon the transfer from
properties, plant and equipment to investment properties,
these properties were revalued at fair value with a gain on
revaluation of approximately HK$7,268,000, which has
been credited to the property revaluation reserve.

All the Group’s buildings for own use are situated in the
PRC on land held under medium-term leases.

The above items of properties, plant and equipment (other
than those under construction) are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Buildings for own use  Over the remaining unexpired
terms of the leases or fifty
years, whichever is the shorter

Leasehold Over the remaining unexpired
improvements terms of the leases or five to
ten years, whichever is the
shorter
Plant and machinery 10 -20%
Furniture, fixtures and 10 — 331/3%
equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

All of the Group’s prepaid lease payments are prepaid
for leasehold interest in land outside Hong Kong under
medium-term land use rights.

17.

18.

M- BEERRBE

BHE-_Z-ZETF+_A=+—HILFE
N AEERSEETYERERERB TS
VEZFRDES - LAEEMRE - |
M BEREEEBREREME  WE
AR EENHE - EHIREL7,268,000
BT BRFAVIE SRS -

AEB2MERBFTHLNPE - Wi
HHARSA -

bt - BB REREEE (BREREEB
SMNIZLAT FE L R A REAETHRITE ¢

BEREF ZRBAL TR R TTLY
K9 F HA sk L+ (JA
BREEBE)

MOWERE ERALHNFIRRT
HNFHKAE+F
(A& e & A%E)

R E K es 10—20%

R~ HEEKR  10—383"43%

B

RE 20%

AAEERE

AEE2MBNEERBEIR/BFBHREIMR
B HIROENEERIE -

2010 2009
—E-ZF —TENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FET

Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEmESTLT -
Current asset MENEE 7,481 5,542
Non-current asset ERBEE 386,701 296,420
394,182 301,962
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 B #& R T M T

For the year ended 31 December 2010 # 2 —F—ZFF+ - A=+—HIFFEF

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 19. AHHERE
2010 2009
—E-EF ZZTNEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTEx FHIT
Available-for-sale investments AR ERERE:
comprise:
Listed investments, at fair value: ETIREGRATFENE):
— equity securities listed in Hong —REB LT 2R
Kong EEE) 146,677 22,496
— equity securities listed in United —REE L2 IR
States B2 - 361,452
Unlisted bond securities issued by BB LMEBITAET
listed issuers in Hong Kong, at fair ZIELEMEFES
value (note a): (B AFEIE (M FEa):
— perpetual bond with fixed —BEERFTFLX6E
coupon interest at ZKAMES
6% per annum 324,127 -
- bond with fixed coupon interest —BEEFFFEE
at 8.6% per annum and 8.6ENEIHRAA
maturity date on —ZE—RF
1 December 2016 +ZA—BZEF 38,694 -
— bond with fixed coupon interest —BEEFFFLE
at 9.62% per annum and 9.62E KEIHR A
maturity date on —ET—+FNH=H
3 August 2017 2 BEH 40,370 -
Unlisted equity investments, at cost:  FF_ EMAAARE
(R AIME)
— private equity investment in the —RHPB 2 ARERARE
PRC (note b) (FF5ED) 36,000 19,800
— private equity investment in —REBZALERAEIRE
Hong Kong (note ¢) (MF3Ee) 144,883 -
730,751 403,748
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r & B iRk KMzt

For the year ended 31 December 2010 # 2 —F—ZFF+ - A=+—HIFFEF

19.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

(continued)
Notes:
(@) During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group purchased

unlisted bond securities issued by listed issuers in Hong Kong.
These unlisted bond securities were designated as available-for-
sale investments at the date of acquisition.

19.

AHERE @)
B
(@) BE-_Z-ZEF+-A=+—RHIFER " K

SEWEES EBTABT 2 LDESE
% o BEH LM ERESRMY BT
AR -

(o) The unlisted investment represents a 11.34% (2009:10%) equity (b) I ETIRE SRR BIR . 2 AL RS AT T T3E
interest in unlisted equity security issued by a private entity FHRAESZ11.34%(ZZTNF : 10%)
established in the PRC and is engaged in hotel operation. It is feHE - ZALEBENERIEEL - AR A FE
measured at cost less impairment at the end of each reporting ZABMERERX  BEEERARENE
period because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so STEEAFE - BOEEMRERNE MRS LM
significant that the Directors are of the opinion that its fair value ERE RN ER -
cannot be measured reliably.

(© During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group (©) BE_Z-—ZF+-_A=1T—HIFER " &K
subscribed for 19.09% interest in a private entity incorporated SERE-—HREBRELHSEMKL 2
in the British Virgin Islands which is engaged in the property EHEI210.00% % - ZILEBRNEBL
development business in Hong Kong. The investee together with EMEBRED - ZLEERBRAMKRER
other investment funds currently holds a number of properties SHREE —RURBBZAEZEAYEE
in a building situated in Hong Kong which is intended for i - ZAERTER(EEHE]) - AEES
redevelopment (the “Redevelopment Project”). The Group’s F it B2 A& 2 10% &M & &8 A21,000,000
participation in the Redevelopment Project is 10% and the %71 (#9163,800,000 7T.) R =T — T4
amount committed by the Group amounts to US$21,000,000 F+ZA=+—H8 AEERSTFHEAER
(approximately HK$163,800,000) and at 31 December 2010, #9144,883,000/8 7T - KR —_ZE—ZF+_A
the Group has contributed approximately HK$144,883,000 as =+—H ARAFEZABHERERX
part of the participation. At 31 December 2010, the investment B EERAREASETEERATE - Bk
is measured at cost less impairment because the range of BIRAMBREH -
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the Directors
are of the opinion that its fair value cannot be measured reliably.

Included in available-for-sale debt investments are the AL EERIRE B TSI AR B E R

2 e B AINE S FHE 2 REE

following amounts denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the group entities to which they
relate:

2010 2009

—E-ZF ZEThEF

’000 ‘000

o T

United States Dollars ETT 70,265 46,340
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 # 2 —F—ZFF+ - A=+—HIFFEF

20.

21.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT 20. FREYE
2010 2009
—E-2F —TTNEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
AT COST BRASIE
Carrying amount of properties held FERMELZ
for development BREE 244,985 -
During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group HEZZ—TFF+A=+—0  £5H
acquired land use rights in the PRC with medium-term VA FR BRFE 49 75 FO7E A B U + b (5 PR R
leases for purpose of future development for sale. RRBFREERS
Properties held for development for sale are expected to FIEHEZRHERMERFNNR T —=F
be realised in 2012 when the construction is completed T Al EREIR o
and ready for sale.
NON-CURRENT DEPOSITS 21. ¥FREFTE

Non-current deposits represent deposits paid for the
acquisition of plant and equipment and properties, and
the deposits will not be realised within twelve months from
the end of the reporting period. Accordingly, the amounts
were included in the non-current assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %44 B &3k = Mzt
For the year ended 31 December 2010 # & - F—FF+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

22. DEFERRED TAXATION 22, EZEBIE
The following are the major deferred tax assets and TRARRERRE M AR RS BHEAE 8
liabilities recognised and movements thereon during the R FBRELERBEENAEUEREFR 2
current and prior reporting periods: b
Revaluation
of properties Others Total
MEER Hts ast
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT T FAT
At 1 January 2009 RZZEZhF—HF—H 316 (4,675) (4,359)
Charge (credit) for the year AEEX T (BE) 1,500 (1,289) 211
At 31 December 2009 RIZEZNF
+=-—A=+—H 1,816 (5,964) (4,148)
Charge (credit) for the year REFEZEEE) 750 (1,707) (957)
At 31 December 2010 R_ZE—ZF
+=-A=+—8 2,566 (7,671) (5,105)
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances AT E RIS MRE 2 RIEN AL
for financial reporting purposes: BT -
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EThEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET THET
Deferred tax assets FEERIRE = 7,671 5,964
Deferred tax liabilities EIEHIEAE (2,566) (1,816)
5,105 4,148
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused R EARERE R - AKE A HETR
tax losses of HK$87,247,000 (2009: HK$73,455,000) s Fll 2 A B A B 18 B3 18 /R 87,247,000/
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax T(ZZZTNF : 73,455,000/ 7T) ° AR
asset has been recognised due to the unpredictability of RASHEFFRAATEN - R E TR
future profit streams. All tax losses can be carried forward EFRRTAEE - 2 EFHIAE 18 ] R HA S -

indefinitely.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 # 2 —F —

22.

23.

B IR MR

FFES A= —HIFE

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 22. IEEFIE (&)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group also has RBEHBERED © AR KRR EFR
unrecognised deferred tax asset of HK$1,623,000 (2009: TR FEA - AL B AR R R
HK$5,440,000) in relation to loss on cash flow hedge RZHReREaENEBEREMAEREZ AERE
recognised in hedging reserve due to the unpredictability EFIIEE E1,623,0008 T(ZEZTNF -
of future profit streams. 5,440,000/ 7T) °
Under the EIT Law the PRC, a withholding tax is imposed PENEMSEERTE B2 N\F—
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned A—Hi#E  FEEEAZERFENER R
by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. BB B F M K 2 Ax B BURFE N o K
Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the NENIA BB AR Rt F 2 Fa b
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary Z%8/51,610,5657,0008 L ( — TN F -
difference attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC 580,080,000/ 7T ) * AEE W RFLZER
subsidiaries amounting to HK$1,610,557,000 (2009: HR A IR RELEE  RERAE
HK$580,080,000) as the Group is able to control the BlREirH B RGRE =Ry RE - B AR
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is =R A pe N2 n] B gk B m o
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
GOODWILL 23. BHE
HK$’000
T
CARRYING VALUE fRmEE
At 1 January 2009 and 31 December 2009 R -—ZEZTHF—A—BE
and 31 December 2010 “EEAFTA=T—HAR
—T-ZF+_A=+—H 238
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= FHR EBERBERERERDA
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 # 2 —F—ZFF+ - A=+—HIFFEF

23.

24.

GOODWILL (continued) 23. HEw®)
Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill BREWE BB ARRELEZREZR
arising from acquisition of a subsidiary disclosed as BRIAFEIBHRENT :
follows:
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been BERRM S - BB S B T RES R
allocated to the cash generating unit (“CGU”) of specialty RS WM s EESSEMN([REELSE
resins business unit. The carrying amount of goodwill ) DEFEESEEESB2ESE
allocated to the CGU of specialty resins business unit is H B v PR BRI (A XY /238,000 (=
approximately HK$238,000 (2009: HK$238,000). TTE : 238,000857T) ©
The recoverable amount of the specialty resins CGU has BREMIRIRSESSMN 2 B £ 58I F
been determined from value-in-use calculation. Goodwill FEEBENELET BHHEHERE
is expected to generate cash flow for indefinite period. HHERE - RAECHEE Ren=
To calculate this, cash flow projections are based on TEORI DA L8 = 4R B 1R I AT b fE 2 B R BB IR
five year periods financial budgets approved by senior TEEARE - (FREBENEELIZETERRK
management. The key assumptions for the value-in-use ABEEENRIIFERRBERS R A
calculations are the budgeted gross margin at a discount 12%( ZFZNF  12%) K% (ZFZT A,
rate of 12% (2009: 12%) and growth rate of 5% (2009: F:5%) NIRZENATREREERE
5%), which are determined based on the unit’'s past WS REHEET -#HRESEAS
performance and management’s expectations for the UzrakEl¢EaREREE  WESER
market development. Since the recoverable amount of B RIREHEARE R 2 EERAEY
the CGU is higher than its carrying amount, the Directors P IR E ARE -
consider that the carrying value of goodwill at the end of
the reporting period is not significantly impaired.
INVENTORIES 24. ®FE
2010 2009
—E2-EF —ETNEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT THET
Raw materials R 1,747,243 1,339,377
Work in progress pase-Uh 407,599 377,437
Finished goods BURR 131,195 98,970
2,286,037 1,815,784
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25.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 25,

PREPAYMENTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

B BRRME
FEFA=+—AILEE

B REMEBWRR KR ALK
REWRE

2010 2009

—E-FF —ETNF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET T

Trade receivables B SRR 2,857,375 2,043,899
Advance to suppliers TEfTERFE R < BB 249,573 280,903
Other receivables and prepayments H U R R IEN T 485,418 295,004
3,592,366 2,619,806

The Group allows credit periods of up to 120 days,
depending on the products sold to its trade customers.
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables at
the end of the reporting period:

AEERTESEFPZEER&RER120
B BFAEEERME - NSRS
REB  BEZERUPRRZRROTAT

2010 2009

—E-2F —2TNF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FAET

0-90 days 0£90H 2,023,205 1,548,804
91 - 180 days 912180H 804,839 462,551
Over 180 days 180B M + 29,331 32,544
2,857,375 2,043,899

All bills receivables of the Group are aged within 90 days
at the end of the reporting period.

Before accepting any new customers, the Group has
an internal credit grading system to assess the potential
customers’ credit quality and the Directors has delegated
the management to be responsible for determination of
credit limits and credit approvals for any customers. Limits
and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed every
year. 83% (2009: 85%) of the trade receivables that were
neither past due nor impaired have the best credit scoring
attributable under the credit grading system used by the
Group.
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25.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(continued)

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$492,786,000 (2009: HK$309,001,000) which are
past due at the end of the reporting period for which the
Group has not provided for impairment loss as the Group
consider that these debtors are financially stable and the
management has taken action to recover the outstanding
palance. The Directors are confident that these amounts
are still recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances. The average age of these
receivables is 134 days (2009: 120 days).

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not
impaired are as follows:

25.

B REMEBERERRAMKE
REWERE @)

REFE S BEUEERSRECERBERER
BRI (B A492,786,0008 L (Z T T A
£ 1 309,001,000/ 7T.) + A& B 45
EREEBH  AEEWERZERIAE
EREBERE  REALAEERA %
LEBAMERERE  BEEECHEIKE
REBEHNTE - EEHE - ZEHE
MERE] FURE o AN B ph iz AR 0 RS
BEMMERR o ZFRUBERR 2 FHRE
B134B(ZTZTNF 1 1208) ©

BHEERELEZRUIRRZ RRNT

2010 2009

S —TEhE

HK$’000 HK$'000

Fi87 Fi57

91 -120 days 91£120H 173,078 112,693
121 -150 days 121%2150H 241,716 129,202
151 -180 days 151%2180H 48,661 34,662
Over 180 days 180H A 29,331 32,544
492,786 309,001

The Group has provided fully for all receivables that are
past due beyond 240 days because historical experience is
such that these receivables are generally not recoverable.
Allowance on trade receivables aged between 120 and
240 days are made based on estimated irrecoverable
amounts by reference to past default experience and
objective evidences of impairment determined by the
difference between the carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flow discounted at the
original effective interest rate.
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25.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 25,

PREPAYMENTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(continued)

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables,
the Group monitors any change in the credit quality of the
trade receivables since the credit was granted and up to
the end of the reporting period. The Directors considered
that the Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk of trade and other receivables, with exposure spread
over a number of counterparties and customers.

ESREMERERERRANRE
FEWERE#)

EETEZREIER 2 TREEER - 87
FRAREEEEREHREDHERER - K
SEERESREERERERZEMNE
B-EEZRR AKEAUESEETZE
S REEMEUERFREERR - RRHZE
RETREP D -

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RIREHE 225

2010 2009

—E-ZF —TENF

HK$°000 HK$’000

T T FHET

Balance at beginning of the year FOEER 170,594 122,009
Net impairment losses recognised on 3t & 5 FELLER Si g2

trade receivables ZREBEFE 2,452 48,585

Balance at end of the year FRES 173,046 170,594

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are
individually impaired trade receivables with an aggregate
balance of HK$173,046,000 (2009: HK$170,594,000)
which have either been placed under liquidation or in
severe financial difficulties. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.
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25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 25. ZE 5 RE{MEWIES R FEZE

PREPAYMENTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES REWERE )

(continued)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts REEHE BB (F)

(continued)

Included in trade and other receivables and prepayments H 5 RHEAMEWRR R BN RIBEE T
are the following amounts denominated in a currency NEEERAE BB AINEEE
other than the functional currency of the group entities to Z R

which they relate:

2010 2009

—E-2F —TTNEF

Amount Amount

| G|

’000 ‘000

Fr T

United States Dollars ESiv 94,694 73,355
Hong Kong Dollars BT 655,509 534,431

26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) FELLOW 26. FEW({)EHRKEABKIE

SUBSIDIARIES
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FABT
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries JREVAEE EW R ZWBA

under current assets RIFRIB

— trade nature —ZE5HE 456,259 323,070
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26.

27.

124

AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) FELLOW
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The Group allows credit period normally up to 120 days
for sales to its fellow subsidiaries. The amounts due are
non-interest bearing, unsecured and aged within 90 days
at the end of the reporting period.

26.

LA ACEPIEEN b)Y NGBS SIE D)

AEEREELRTERRMNBRARZEE
H—MeRA120H - ZERKFIEAR B
RERE  HERRYARSHHELERER
HEHI90HZ A ©

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZTTNE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHT
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries  REIEEIE NENEZHER
under current liabilities AIFRIE
— trade nature —B5M1nE 28,012 20,040

The Group’s non-interest bearing amounts due to fellow
subsidiaries have repayment terms of less than 30 days.
The amounts due are non-interest bearing, unsecured
and aged within 90 days at the end of the reporting
period.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the
Group and short-term bank deposits with an original
maturity of one month or less. At 31 December 2010, the
bank balances and deposits carry interest at the prevailing
market interest rates which range from 0.01% to 1.17%
(2009: 0.01% to 3.7%) per annum.

At 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Group had bank
balances and cash that were not freely convertible or
were subject to exchange controls in the PRC amounting
to approximately HK$1,525.7 million and HK$845.3
million, respectively.

Annual Report 2010 Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited
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27.

AEBRBENRRNMBARKIEBZENR
HIDM30R - ZEFRNFA/RELER
o BRI AREHREAERE HEHO
BHzA -

RITEHRAE

RIEBAERSDEREERFE2RER
REHEA—EARARNZ ERRTET
HeW-B-BF+-A=+—8 R
BHRRFRERIDBFHENF001E

Z1A7E(ZZEZTAF  0.01EEI.7E )t
B o

RZE—EFRZFETINFF+ZA=+—
B ANEETEHLIRKBEZFREINE
EHFRRZRITEBR LB SO RO A
1,525,700,000/% 7T 5. 845,300,000 7T ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 # 2 —F—ZFF+ - A=+—HIFFEF

27. BANK BALANCES AND CASH (continued) 27.

Included in bank balances and cash are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the

functional currency of the group entities to which they

RITERREE®)

RITEBRRREBRETIIAKE AR
ZBEEBIASNEEEHEZ R

relate:
2010 2009
—F-%¥F “TTNF
Amount Amount
©H TR
’000 ’000
Fi Fi
United States Dollars ESiv 61,377 91,835
Hong Kong Dollars BT 271,015 593,902
Japanese Yen H - 201

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 28.

BILLS PAYABLES

BEZRAEMEMNRARENRERE

2010 2009

—E-ZF ZETNF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHEIT

Trade payables B S EHIRR 562,517 457,068

Accrued expenses e & 193,326 114,230
Payables for purchase of properties, BEWE  BEMEE

plant and equipment Z FERTERK 150,271 61,480

Other payables H i FE TR K 337,855 259,657

1,243,969 892,435
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28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 28. ESRH#MENERRENERS

BILLS PAYABLES (continued) (&)
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at the BHEMNERARESHELERE B 2R
end of the reporting period: DT -
2010 2009
—E-2F ZTENEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
0-90 days 0Z90H 495,735 369,417
91 - 180 days 91£180H 37,759 54,919
Over 180 days 1808 M £ 29,023 32,732
562,517 457,068
All bills payables of the Group are aged within 90 days at RNEBFARNRE 2 BRES REREHE
the end of the reporting period. HEREAEMIOAZA o
Included in trade and other payables and bills payables Z o5 REMENERKENRESE T
are the following amounts denominated in a currency NEETREE e EEUIINEEE
other than the functional currency of the group entities to 2 TRER
which they relate:
2010 2009
—E2-ZF —ETNEF
Amount Amount
S8 |
’000 ‘000
T T
United States Dollars Eiv 53,236 56,325
Japanese Yen H 888,743 436,450
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29. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 29. fTHE€MIA

2010 2009
—E-2F —TTNEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET T
Commodity forward contracts A mEEE 4 33,493 11,628
Interest rate swap contracts AR HI S %) 9,838 32,971
43,331 44,599

Analysed for reporting purposes as:  BIRESFTAT :
Current maE 43,331 11,628
Non-current FERE - 32,971
43,331 44,599

Cash flow hedges REREET

During both years, the Group used interest rate swap
contracts (net quarterly settlement) to minimise its
exposure to certain cash flow changes of its variable
rate bank borrowings by swapping a proportion of the
variable rate borrowings from variable rate to fixed rate.
The terms of these interest rate swap contracts were
negotiated to match with those of the hedged bank
borrowings (i.e. same notional amount of the derivatives
match with principal amounts of bank borrowings, same
currency and same interest rate index). The Directors
consider that the interest rate swap contracts are highly
effective hedging instruments and have designated them
as hedging instruments for hedge accounting purposes.

MEZMEFE  AEBZEEKHEYTZEE
ERFEEA/EER  MANREHAN(F
BHEFR)RIERTEFAEZRITEES
TREREEH AR - ZENERHE
2GR T RECA BIRIRITREE 2 &5k
AREGH(BIEESTETAZ HREERS
RITIEEZAZ SR - HREK R RAARF
KER) - ARAEFRR - NEEHEL
RIBEMNER TR - WIRENXIEHE
MREP R REEPTA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 # 2 —F—ZFF+ - A=+—HIFFEF

29. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 29.
(continued)
Cash flow hedges (continued)
Included in bank borrowings as disclosed in Note
30 were bank loans of HK$892,308,000 (2009:
HK$1,153,846,000) which were under cash flow hedges
at the end of the reporting period as follows:

TTETRMI A

REeEREBEYHE)
MESOEBE 2 RITEERRERTE
892,308,000 Tt (= T T h &F :
1,153,846,000/870) * RIkE ARG RE
B ZEERRBRESRELHRET 2HIE
N

Notional Receive
Outstanding contracts as at amount Maturity floating Pay fixed
RUTEBEREBZEN HEHE EIHAH FrCE R S

HK$’000

FHT
31 December 2010 892,308 Within 1 year HIBOR 2.39% to 3.88%
—E-TF+=ZA=+—H —ERX EABRITRAZEFE 2.39EE3.88FE
31 December 2009 1,153,846 Within 1 to 2 years HIBOR 2.39% to 3.88%
—EENF+ZA=+—H —EMEN EBRITAEFE 2.39EE3.88FE

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the hedge
was 89% to 101% (2009: 97% to 99%) effective in
hedging the accumulated cash flow exposure to interest
rate movements. At 31 December 2010, fair value
losses of HK$9,838,000 (2009: HK$32,971,000) have
been deferred in hedging reserve and are expected to
be reclassified to consolidated income statement when
the hedged interest expense is charged to profit or loss
quarterly.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, an amount of
approximately HK$29,650,000 (2009: HK$28,709,000)
was transferred from hedging reserve to profit or loss and
was included in the finance costs in consolidated income
statement.

1 28 Annual Report 2010 Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 # 2 —F—ZFF+ - A=+—HIFFEF

29.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 29,

(continued)

Other derivatives (not under hedge accounting)

During both years, the Group entered into commodity
forward contracts to hedge against part of the Group’s
exposure in copper price fluctuations. At the respective
maturity dates, the contracts are settled net in cash with
the issuer. The major terms of the outstanding contract at

the end of the reporting period are as follows:

At 31 December 2010

Contract amount

TTETRMI A

HifTE TR

(A 3F AR EEHESIRR)
REZMEFE  AEEFIYERERS
# o EAERAEENHD RERBR
o REEMAB > BHETANRESEERES
HERR - RIEMEAERER - ZHARE
ANz FERFET

R-B-ZEF+-A=t+—H

EHEE
Currency Quantity Maturity Forward price
B HE Z|HA A =HE
us$ Copper 200 metric tonnes 1 February 2011 Sell at US$8,350/metric tonne
X7 20072 M 3R —T——FZRF—H  M8350%T AMEL
us$ Copper 200 metric tonnes 1 February 2011 Sell at US$8,320/metric tonne
ET 200 AWE4f —T——F-R—H  M8320FT/ AMEH
us$ Copper 200 metric tonnes 1 February 2011 Sell at US$8,335/metric tonne
xET 20072 B 3R —T——%=ZHF—H  M8335ET/ AMEHL
uss$ Copper 200 metric tonnes 1 February 2011 Sell at US$8,380/metric tonne
X7 2007\ M 3R —T——FZHA—H  M8380%kT/ AMEL
us$ Copper 200 metric tonnes 1 February 2011 Sell at US$8,365/metric tonne
ET 200 AWE4f —T——F-F—H  M8365FkL/ AMEH
us$ Copper 1,000 metric tonnes 1 February 2011 Sell at US$8,420/metric tonne
T 1,000 A WA —E——H%ZR—H  R8420%T/ AMEH
Us$ Copper 1,000 metric tonnes 1 March 2011 Sell at US$8,900/metric tonne
x7T 1,000 2 HE 3R —T——F=F—H  RM8900%T,  AME L
us$ Copper 1,000 metric tonnes 1 April 2011 Sell at US$8,800/metric tonne
ET 1,000 2 B 3R —T——FWA—H  M8,800FksT/ AMEEH

At 31 December 2009

Contract amount

R-BEAF+ZA=1—H

EHEE
Currency Quantity Maturity Forward price
B HE Z|EA A =HE
us$ Copper 500 metric tonnes 1 February 2010 Sell at US$6,613/metric tonne
X7 50072 —T-THF-_FA—H  H6613ET AMEL
us$ Copper 500 metric tonnes 1 February 2010 Sell at US$6,606/metric tonne
xET 500 AWE4f “E-ZF-F—H 16,6065k AMEH
us$ Copper 500 metric tonnes 1 February 2010 Sell at US$6,577/metric tonne
xET 5002 8 —T-ZTHF-R—H  Re577ERT/AMEL
uss$ Copper 500 metric tonnes 31 January 2010 Sell at US$6,574/metric tonne
xE7T 5007\ —T-THF—A=+—BR6574ET AMEL
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29. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 29,

(continued)

Other derivatives (not under hedge accounting)

(continued)

The above derivatives are measured at fair value at the
end of the reporting period by reference to valuation
provided by counterparty financial institutions for these
instruments which are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on discounted

TTETRMI A

HfTETA

(I AR RS EHESIRR) ()

BlOTAETARRENEERE B LS
ZEBR ST BB BIRE

27 ==
N

BTRREMES N MR ERENEH
REMSEXHBEEMSNERRIAE - A
BUTANRZEMEMETNHMEE "

cash flow analysis and forward pricing models using BATERE -
prices or rates from observable current market
transactions and dealer quotes for similar instruments.
30. BANK BORROWINGS 30. RITEE
2010 2009
—E-BF —TENEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THET
Unsecured: 30 e
Bank loans RITER 3,322,109 2,695,880
Trust receipt loans EFBIEER 194,791 297,984
3,516,900 2,993,864
Carrying amount repayable: AR T EEEE REE
Within one year —FR 2,147,486 1,030,516
More than one year, but not —F LA HETEBBME
exceeding two years 269,148 1,593,934
More than two years but not MEA LEBETBR=F
more than three years 433,601 269,149
More than three years but not =F L\ HENEBNE
more than four years 444,444 100,265
More than four years but not WE BT BRRF
more than five years 222,221 -
1,369,414 1,963,348
Total A&t 3,516,900 2,993,864
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 # 2 —F—ZFF+ - A=+—HIFFEF

30. BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 30.
Bank borrowings at 31 December 2010 are variable-
rate borrowings which carry interest ranging from
HIBOR +0.5% to HIBOR +2.0% (2009: HIBOR+0.5% to
HIBOR+2.0%) per annum.

The range of effective interest rates (which are also
equal to contracted interest rates) on the Group’s bank
borrowings is 1% to 3.8% (2009: 1% to 3.8%) per
annum.

Included in bank borrowings are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the group entities to which they relate:

RITEE @)
R-E—FF+-_A=+—8  B7EE
BRBZEE  FAENTHBRITRAE
FEIOSEENM20OERE(— T NE ¢
EBRITAZEIRBMOLEEI2.0E) -

NEBRITEE 2 BEFIE(NERETLF
K)BENTFFANER1BEEISE(ZETN
F{EEI8E) T -

RITIEERETIAEEEREAH 26
BEREAINEESHE 2 58

2010 2009
—E2-%F “TThEF
Amount Amount
-] |
’000 ‘000
Fi Fi
United States Dollars Ein 17,295 38,203
Hong Kong Dollars BIT 3,323,241 2,046,154
31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. B
THE COMPANY FiN/NE]
Authorised Issued and fully paid
EE ERITRER
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
RHEE £HE RHHE &5
‘000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$’000
T FH&T T FAT
Ordinary shares of SREE0. 10T
HK$0.10 each: 2 &R
At 1January 2009, 31  R=ZTTAF—F—H -
December 2009 and —ETAF+HR
31 December 2010 =t—HE-Z-ZTF
+=—A=+—H 20,000,000 2,000,000 3,000,000 300,000
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32.

33.

SPECIAL RESERVES

Special reserve of the Group represents (i) the difference
between the net asset value of the acquired subsidiaries
and the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
for the acquisition at the time of the group reorganisation
in 2006 and (i) the reduction in the registered capital of a
wholly-owned subsidiary established in the PRC.

SHARE OPTIONS

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”)
was approved by the shareholders of the Company and
the shareholders of KCHL on 18 May 2007 and 25 June
2007, respectively. The Scheme has taken effect after
obtaining the approval from the Listing Committee of the
Stock Exchange on 6 July 2007.

The Scheme would be valid for a period of ten years. The
Board may, at its discretion, grant options to subscribe
for shares in the Company to eligible participants who
contribute to the long-term growth and profitability of
the Company and include (i) any employee or proposed
employee (whether full-time or part-time and including any
executive director), consultants or advisers of or to the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any entity (“Invested
Entity”) in which the Group holds an equity interest;
(i) any non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors), any of its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity; (iii) any supplier of goods or services to
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; (iv) any
customer of the Group or any Invested Entity; (v) any
person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support to the Group or any
Invested Entity; and (vi) any shareholder of any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity or any holder of any
securities issued by any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity.

1 32 Annual Report 2010 Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited
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33.

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

The subscription price of the Company’s share in respect
of any option granted under the Scheme must be at
least the highest of () the closing price of the shares of
the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant of the option, which
must be a business day; (i) the average closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
option; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares of the
Company.

The option may be accepted by a participant within
28 days from the date of the offer for the grant of the
option upon the payment of a consideration of HK$1.
An option may be exercised at any time during a period
to be determined and notified by the Directors to each
grantee, and in the absence of such determination, from
the date upon which the offer for the grant of the option
is accepted but shall end in any event not later than 10
years from the date of grant of the option subject to the
provisions for early termination thereof. The Directors
may, at their absolute discretion, fix any minimum period
for which an option must be held, any performance
targets that must be achieved and any other conditions
that must be fulfilled before the options can be exercised
upon the grant of an option to a participant.

The total number of shares of the Company which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Company (excluding, for this purpose, options lapsed
in accordance with the terms of the Scheme and any
other share option scheme of the Company) must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares of
the Company in issue as at the date of approval of the
Scheme.

The maximum number of shares of the Company which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Company must not
exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time.

33.

BrERE®
FRRIFZET B L 2 BT IEIREFTS R
KRB 2 REEMETEER AT &
BER (AR RBRONECERER LB
H(NWEREER) ZBXMEERERN
HULTE : (VAR BIRHDRBEZEELER
EEDABAEEEE BT AR
BRFTWETEZFHE - R(i)AQFIR
P2 EE -

SEATANEREREBEBREZR
HE28RA - BB EVETEAESR
BRE - EABREARARAESRETE
FMBMEEAFEAN 2 BEABERITE @ W8
EEEMHME  AhEiBRERHES
EEA BRS  XRERBRTNER
BEBRERD BSEF+FZARL
WAXZAT B 2 IRBRILIGEXAR - EF
A2RRBR2EALFETERMELZ
BEABRERNVARA ZKEHAE - [
ATEKRZIKEBEREMEMBATERX
ZARME -

WRIEFZ A 8 B AR R B LA ELA 12 S i OO
SR Z AR EABREGLLN S M8
AR AT B R AR R AE o] E A8 SE I AR
RERTBI Z IR E R 2 B IR B ) JET T
Bl T BT 2 ARRIRMDER - & RS
HBARR NI EZEE BE#HITRD
HBE210% °

RIBFZ 8 R AR B AR A EL A 18 S B A
BT AREMERITERBERTRZE
FTEBIAERITER A TRITZ AR AN
HA  REIEBEERNRBNRZ2EET
PR AR30% e
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33. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 33. ELERE®
The total number of shares of the Company issued and to REM+@AAERZSL2EALTREY
be issued upon exercise of the options granted (including BEBREBREEITERRTEZELE
both exercised and outstanding options) to each R ) AT M 2 BT RIG FEITZ AN T
participant in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% D428 - TNEBBEAR SR EITIR
of the share capital of the Company then in issue unless B21%  BRIFERRAR MBI ZIRE
approved by the shareholders of the Company and KCHL RIEE A SHERIVER ©
in general meetings.
No share option was granted pursuant to the Scheme BEMZETEIAK - BERIEZATEIR T
since its adoption. FB IR -
34. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES 34. WEKREBATR
(a) On 27 March 2010, the Group acquired 100% (a) R-E—ZF=A_=_++tH &%
equity interest in a company which principally to En—ZEAREEWEBE B
be engaged in the property development business FoHRE—RTEREVEEE
from an independent third party not related to the EBARINEHRE  BeRER
Group for a cash consideration of approximately #785,800,000/8 7T - PUKEEE R -
HK$85,800,000. At the date of acquisition, WWE R RKE R R — i
the acquiree has no other activity other than a PETERION - T MEA)ES) o BULIE
prepayment made for an acquisition of a piece Ut i DAL B 8 2 T TS = TS S 017
of land in the PRC, therefore the acquisition has BR o BB EE R -
been accounted for as acquisition of asset rather
than business combination. No goodwill arises as
a result of the acquisition.
The net asset acquired at the date of acquisition REZER  BAZEEFED
are as follows: T
HK$’000
FH&T
Net asset acquired: BABETE :
Prepayments for acquisition of L B + 4 5 FRAEE 2 FE 0B
land use rights 85,800
Total consideration satisfied by cash RSN BRE 85,800
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition WHEELE 7RSSR F5E - (85,800)
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34.

ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 34. WEMEB AT (#)

(a) (continued) (@) €=
Subsequent to the acquisition, the Group RZBEWEEZ  AEEEAEKE
has further paid an amount of approximately + b {F A #E X 49 159,185,000
HK$159,185,000 for acquisition of the land BT WER-_E—ZTF+_-A
use rights and classified as properties held for =+ AZUBRRABRRTHES
development in the statement of financial position FREWHE RNWEDAHREE -
at 31 December 2010, and no other activity —ZEFF+ZA=+—8  ZHBEA
was carried out by the subsidiary for the period A AT EH A ER) ©
between the date of acquisition and 31 December
2010.

(b) On 10 June 2010, the Group acquired 100% (b) RZE—ZFA+H  m&EEME
equity interest in a company principally engaged in —ZEAREBTERBEZEE
manufacture of raw materials from an independent ZHEBE - BHEERERERR
third party not related to the Group at a cash ZRBZEHEE  RERER
consideration of HK$10,526,000. At the date of 10,526,000/ 7T - RUEEE H  #
acquisition, the acquiree has ceased its operations WEAEEIFEENTERAMR
and primarily holds a land use right in the PRC PR R S EE
which is intended for redevelopment, therefore the RS o B IBULEE DUKBE S EM
acquisition has been accounted for as acquisition TREBEHIER o EWET &
of asset rather than business combination. No EAE-
goodwill arises as a result of the acquisition.

The fair value of the net assets acquired at the REEH  BAZEESREZA
date of acquisition are as follows: FEWMT
HK$’000
THT
Net assets acquired: BABETE :
Properties, plant and equipment WE - BB K& 249
Prepaid lease payments FEHEIE 5,943
Other receivables HAth FEUER SR 4,252
Bank balances and cash IRITEBR RS 82
Total consideration R (E 10,526
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEEEE 2 IR e F5E
Cash consideration paid BfRERE (10,526)
Bank balances and cash acquired BARITESR RS 82
(10,444)
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34. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)  34.
(b) (continued)
The subsidiary has no revenue and incurred loss
of approximately HK$3,000 to the Group’s profit
for the year for the period between the date of
acquisition and 31 December 2010.

35. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 35.
On 30 September 2009, the Group disposed of its entire
interest in a subsidiary to an independent third party for a
cash consideration of HK$42,497,000. The net assets at
the date of disposal is as follow:

WS BB A Rl ()

(o) (%)
ZHWBARNKER SRR E
TTE+-A-+—RILFEEIE
HARED UL A - 3 RN R B
£03% 1 BE AE 493,000/ 7T 2 548

HE—BMBAR
—TTAFNA=ZTH  AEEHRABYE
ZHHE—RWBAR 23S - B
KRB A42,497,00087C - WHERBZE
EFENT

HK$’000
THET
Net asset disposed of: HEEEFRE -
Properties, plant and equipment W - BE SR 12,234
Inventories & 19,305
Trade and other receivables and B 5 NMEMERIRR RFERFIA
prepayments 23,986
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBRIIRS 22,423
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAET IR (35,451)
Total consideration satisfied by cash LR eI arRE 42,497
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEELEZESRAFRE
Cash consideration received BURERE 42,497
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HERS MRS SEER (22,423)
20,074
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36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS BAREE
2010 2009
—E-EF ZTENGF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TExT FET
Capital expenditure contracted for but 2 5] #1MBRPER A BT HRE
not provided in the consolidated BB 2 EARRE
financial statements for:
— acquisition of properties, —BEYHE  BERREE
plant and equipment 492,540 32,340
— capital injection in an unlisted —FEF TR ARE
equity investment 18,917 -
37. OPERATING LEASES KEREN
2010 2009
—E-ZF —TENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
The Group as lessee: REBEREAMEA :
Minimum lease payments chargedto AR GE WEFHBR
the consolidated income statement Z BRI
during the year
— for premises — 2,795 2,626

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain of its office properties and all lease
payments are fixed and predetermined.

BREBRONFRARBERETRAEDE
EffziEE - MEBRAONRz 2BERE
ENFARETE -
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37. OPERATING LEASES (continued) 37. REHN#)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s future RREAELERE R - AEBEIRBET AT
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases 2 EEHGONA {?i T2 MO RER
are payable as follows: THIERRE S A
2010 2009
—E-2F ZTENEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THT
Within one year —FR 776 676
After one year but not later than —FRERAEFRN
five years 1,865 1,852
After five years iy 17,262 17,534
19,903 20,062
2010 2009
—E-2F ZTENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHT
The Group as lessor: REBERDEA -
Rental income credited to the FREFALGRE WEZER
consolidated income statement Z WA (B0
during the year, net of outgoing 4 A272,0007 7T
amount of approximately (ZEZTNF : 248,000/8
HK$272,000 (2009: HK$248,000)  7T)) 13,192 11,368
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37.

38.

OPERATING LEASES (continued) 37. RKREMEH=)
The Group’s investment properties are rented to AEBZEEYMESHZBEEF 2 TEA
outside parties for periods up to seven years at fixed SHFINRAL  HHERALF - KNIk
predetermined amounts. At the end of the reporting LHREERER  AEEESEAFTLA
period, the Group had contracted with tenants to receive 2 BB 2 SERAOT R ABIK
the following future minimum lease payments under non- B HERLOMZEOT -
cancellable operating leases:
2010 2009
—E2-ZF —ETNEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET THET
Within one year —FR 10,179 7,203
After one year but not later than —FRERAFR
five years 12,792 6,794
After five years hF% 265 715
23,236 14,712
MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 38. FEHFBREXRH

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group
sold certain of its properties, plant and equipment
of carrying amount of HK$6,951,000 to its fellow
subsidiaries. The amounts were settled through current
account with the fellow subsidiaries.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group
acquired additional equity interest in a private entity in the
PRC (which is included in available-for-sale investments
as disclosed in note 19) for a total consideration of
HK$16,200,000. The amount was settled through current
account with this entity.

REBEE-_ZT—ZTF+-_A=+—HILZF
ER - AEERERZHBAREHEKR
86,951,000 T2 & TWE - BE K&
%o BZERAWBARBBRKLES
RATKEE o

REBEE-_ZT—ZTF+-_A=+—HIZF
R NEBEA—BURF RS S
ZRBHMNIRHE (B AR EEIRE - WHHT
FT193EE) - AR (E/516,200,000/8 7T - £
ZERABNRELSEHENE -
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39.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group participates in both a defined contribution
scheme which was registered under the Occupational
Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”)
and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme which was
established under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Ordinance in December 2000 (the “MPF Scheme”). The
assets of the schemes are held separately from those of
the Group and are invested in funds under the control of
independent trustees. Employees who were members of
the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of the MPF
Scheme are members of both the ORSO Scheme and
the MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees joining the
Group on or after December 2000 are required to join the
MPF Scheme.

Employees of subsidiaries in the PRC are members of the
state-sponsored pension schemes operated by the PRC
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll to the pension schemes
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the pension schemes is to make the required
contributions.

Payments to the ORSO Scheme, the MPF Scheme and
the state-sponsored pension schemes of approximately
HK$12,930,000 (2009: HK$10,800,000) had been
charged to profit or loss.
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39.

RKERGHE

A ER (B[R] B 2 0 — TR AR VR B S AR IRAH B 16k
BIEE 2 7 BB SRt &) (T BRI E) )
ERERFMEABESEIN _FTEF
ToARZZBBIEREREE([RES
T8 - ZERTEIZEERAEB 2 EE
DA WIRERBBIETAZENZ
BEE - RKIBES B ZATE 2 B
RRFTEIZIEE - AR ABERIRE
RBEERFTEIZKE  MABR_EEE
Fr A BRIMATEB Z R B ME
2R EEEE -

TEMBARZEE ST EBFEEE
ZEMERKETEIKE - ZEMBRRIAER
FEXHZRE BB ARKEE - A
XN BRREF - AEERAKTEETL
ME—BERSNARHR -

MEBERKFE - BESHEIRERE
RORET B 2 349 512,930,000/ 7T
(ZZZT /% : 10,800,000/&7T) * & 818
AR o
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40. BAEALXRES
The Group entered into the following significant AREFHREEATEFRNETZERRLS
transactions with related parties during the year: mr
2010 2009
—B-ZF —ETNEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FHET
(i) Sales of goods and drilling iy MPRZENEBAREESE R
services provided to fellow KRBT RS
subsidiaries 2,591,093 2,101,289

(i) Purchase of goods from fellow iy MERMBARFEEER
subsidiaries 504,457 370,343

(i) Rental expenses paid to fellow (i) mRZRMEBA RN
subsidiaries Hemx 4,050 5,417

(iv) Sales of copper to a shareholder  (iv) [A| S AL A BIILER

of ultimate holding company SHE R 170,242 -
(v) Purchase of drill bits from a (v) MELERAFRE

shareholder of ultimate holding HREgEE

company 14,019 -

(vi) Purchase of machineries from a (Vi) [AIFRIERR A IR

shareholder of ultimate holding PREE R

company 6,538 -
Other than above, the Group also disposed of certain Br Eii 2z S50 - AEE IRmE R R E R
properties, plant and equipment to its fellow subsidiaries B ERE(E6,951,0008 7L ( ZEZ N F:
with carrying value of HK$6,951,000 (2009: nil) at a BEBEI)ZETYE BERRE REAR
consideration of HK$6,951,000 (2009: nil). 6,951,000 7TT(ZTZNFIEH)
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40.

41.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40. BAEAXTXRFZ#E)
(continued)
Compensation of key management personnel FTEEEAESME
The remuneration of Directors and other members of key FR EBRHMETEEEAE ZME W0
management during the year is as follows: T
2010 2009
—B-2F “ETHE
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Short-term benefits K EAER 86,100 67,411
Post-employment benefits RIKERER 676 568
86,776 67,979
The remuneration of Directors and key executives EELTETRAEZENCSEZEERE
is determined with reference to the performance of TEBRETISEBIEETF -
individuals and market trends.
PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 41. AATFTEMEBATZiE

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2009 and 2010 are as follows:

RIEEZNFRE—ZEF+_A=1+—
B ARAREERBEARZFBUOT :

Place of Proportion of
incorporation/ Issued and fully the ownership
registration paid share capital/ interest held
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital by the Group Principal activities
R, ERTRAR rEEfEE
WEARER BEREE N BA/ g BRERGLS @ TEXB
2010 2009
“E-BF “TENE
% %
Excel First Investments Limited  British Virgin US$1 100 100  Investment holding
BREEBRAF Islands* ES KERR
EBRRES!
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 # 2 —F—ZFF+ - A=+—HIFFE

41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 41. AZATETEMEBATZHE =)
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)
Place of Proportion of
incorporation/ Issued and fully the ownership
registration paid share capital/ interest held
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital by the Group Principal activities
ML, ERIRAR rEBfRE
WEARERE BEREE N B/ EMER BEERRLS W TEXK
2010 2009
“B-BF —TENE
% %
Fogang Kingboard Industry Ltd.  PRC RMB878,100,000 64.57 64.44  Manufacture and
FRRZEEEXBRAT el ! AR#878,100,0007 distribution of copper
foll
RERDEEE
Kingboard Copper Foil Holdings  Bermuda US$72,250,000 64.57 64.44  Investment holding
Limited ARE 72,250,000% T REER
Kingboard (Fogang) Insulated PRC ! US$7,615,000 100 100 Manufacture and
Material Company Limited HE 7,615,000%7C distribution of
B (6 BEM AR AT bleached kraft paper
BERAHRARFM
Kingboard (Fogang) Laminates ~ PRC'! US$29,466,000 100 100 Manufacture and
Co. Limited g ! 29,466,000% T distribution of
BE () BERERAF laminates
HERHHERRAR
Kingboard (Fogang) Paper PRC! US$17,936,546 100 100  Manufacture and
Laminates Co. Ltd. ! 17,936,546% T distribution of
BE () REARER A laminates
HERHHEERRER
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41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 41. ZATETEMEBATZHE =)
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)
Place of Proportion of
incorporation/ Issued and fully the ownership
registration paid share capital/ interest held
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital by the Group Principal activities
R, ERTRAR rEEfEE
WEARER BEREE N BA /g BREERRLS TEXB
2010 2009
“E-BF “TENE
% %
Kingboard Electronic Raw PRC ! US$30,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and
Material (Jiang Yin) Co., Ltd. ~ #E ! 30,000,000% 7T distribution of
BEETMHOIR)AERAF laminates
BERAHERER
Kingboard Laminates (Jiangmen) PRC'! HK$189,491,052 100 100  Manufacture and
Co., Ltd. HE 189,491,052 T distribution of
IFRERERBRAR laminates
LR WERAR
Kingboard (Jiangsu) Chemical ~ PRC'! US$28,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and
Co., Ltd. T 28,000,000 7T distribution of
RE(TH)LTARAA chemicals
RERD B IER
Kingboard Laminates (Kunshan) PRC'! US$32,010,000 100 100 Manufacture and
Co., Ltd. hE ! 32,010,000 distribution of
BEBEER(ZL)ERAT laminates
BER A HERER
Kingboard (Lian Zhou) Fibre PRC ! US$13,700,000 100 100 Manufacture and
Glass Co. Limited HE ! 13,700,000 7T distribution of glass
BECGEN) BmasE fabric
BRARA RERDHREGAR
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41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 41. ZATETEMEBATZHE =)
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)
Place of Proportion of
incorporation/ Issued and fully the ownership
registration paid share capital/ interest held
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital by the Group Principal activities
EMAL/ ERTRAR AEEfRE
HEAR AR BOREE B EMER BEEERLS  EEER
2010 2009
“E-ZF —TTNE
% %
Kingboard (Lian Zhou) Copper ~ PRC'! US$64,000,000 64.57 64.44  Manufacture and
Foil Limited R T 64,000,000% 7T distribution of copper
BEEN)WEBR AT foll
HERDBER
Kingboard (Panyu Nansha) PRC RMB250,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and
Petrochemical Company i AR 250,000,000 distribution of
Limited chemicals
BE(EERD)AL RERDBI IER
BRAA
# These are investment holding companies which have no specific #OWENRJEEERAR  WERTTELEME -
principal place of operations.
! These companies were established in the PRC in the form of T SRR ECE I RIERBRKT -
Wholly Foreign-owned Enterprises.
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company TRFAVARARIEERATEZENRE
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected EENEEZARTRMBAF « XAH
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other EEREINNHEMHMB AT ZE BN
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result TE °
in particulars of excessive length.
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at ZH BN TR E GBI ERITERERE

the end of the year. 5 o
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Financial Summary

LUpiE 2

RESULTS E4
Year ended 31 December
BE+t=-A=t—-HLEE
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
—TERF —TTHF —TT)\FE —TTNEFE —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET T FHET FHET FEx
Revenue EL 8,472,422 10,426,783 10,127,764 9,070,983 13,055,205
Profit before taxation B ATEF 1,887,260 2,054,835 1,321,136 1,793,940 2,636,467
Income tax expense PSR (145,849) (129,226) (70,466) (128,117)  (269,783)
Profit for the year REE G F 1,741,411 1,925609 1,250,670 1,665,823 2,366,684
Attributable to: FE(R{H%EE
Owners of the Company P/NEIESY SN 1,638,134 1,813,269 1,203,804 1,648,031 2,280,380
Non-controlling interests FEIE R 103,277 112,340 46,366 17,792 86,304
1,741,411 1,925,609 1,250,670 1,665,823 2,366,684
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
At 31 December
R+=—HA=+—H
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
—TERF —TEHF —TT)\F —TTNEF —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FHET FExT FET FET FTExT
Total assets BEHLE 10,245,880 12,531,209 12,804,358 13,699,718 16,439,825
Total liabilities BEEE (4,606,776) (4,936,803) (4,646,213) (4,487,190) (5,586,438)
Net assets BEFE 5,639,104 7,594,406 8,158,145 9,212,528 10,853,387
Equity attributable to owners ZR AT AJEIEHE R
of the Company 4938168 6,739,745 7,268,942 8,327,709 9,869,990
Non-controlling interests TR 700,936 854,661 889,203 884,819 983,397
Total equity BT 5,639,104 7,594,406 8,158,145 9,212,528 10,853,387
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